
 

 

 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 

Wednesday 6 November 2013 

2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield S1 2HH 
 

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

COUNCIL 

 

Wednesday 6 November 2013, at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield S1 2HH 

 

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Peter Rippon) 

 

1 Arbourthorne Ward 10 Dore & Totley Ward 19 Mosborough Ward 
 Julie Dore 

Jack Scott 
 

 Keith Hill 
Joe Otten 
Colin Ross 
 

 David Barker 
Isobel Bowler 
Tony Downing 
 

2 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 11 East Ecclesfield Ward 20 Nether Edge Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Clive Skelton 
Roy Munn 
 

 Garry Weatherall 
Steve Wilson 
Joyce Wright 
 

 Anders Hanson 
Qurban Hussain 
Nikki Bond 
 

3 Beighton Ward 12 Ecclesall Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Helen Mirfin-Boukouris 

Chris Rosling-Josephs 
Ian Saunders 
 

 Roger Davison 
Diana Stimely 
Penny Baker 
 

 John Campbell 
Martin Lawton 
Lynn Rooney 
 

4 Birley Ward 13 Firth Park Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 

 Denise Fox 
Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Alan Law 
Chris Weldon 
Sheila Constance 
 

 Sioned-Mair Richards 
Peter Price 
Peter Rippon 
 

5 Broomhill Ward 14 Fulwood Ward 23 Southey Ward 

 Shaffaq Mohammed 
Stuart Wattam 
Jayne Dunn 
 

 Andrew Sangar 
Sue Alston 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Leigh Bramall 
Tony Damms 
Gill Furniss 
 

6 Burngreave Ward 15 Gleadless Valley Ward 24 Stannington Ward 

 Jackie Drayton 
Ibrar Hussain 
Talib Hussain 
 

 Cate McDonald 
Tim Rippon 
Steve Jones 
 

 David Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Katie Condliffe 
 

7 Central Ward 16 Graves Park Ward 25 Stockbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Jillian Creasy 
Mohammad Maroof 
Robert Murphy 
 

 Denise Reaney 
Ian Auckland 
Bob McCann 
 

 Alison Brelsford 
Philip Wood 
Richard Crowther 
 

8 Crookes Ward 17 Hillsborough Ward 26 Walkley Ward 

 Sylvia Anginotti 
Geoff Smith 
Rob Frost 
 

 Janet Bragg 
Bob Johnson 
George Lindars-Hammond 
 

 Ben Curran 
Nikki Sharpe 
Neale Gibson 
 

9 Darnall Ward 18 Manor Castle Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 

 Harry Harpham 
Mazher Iqbal 
Mary Lea 
 

 Jenny Armstrong 
Terry Fox 
Pat Midgley 
 

 Trevor Bagshaw 
Alf Meade 
Adam Hurst 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 

     Mick Rooney 
Jackie Satur 
Ray Satur 
 

 



 

 

John Mothersole Chief Executive 

 
Contact: Paul Robinson, Democratic Services 
 Tel: 0114 2734029 
 paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their Ward. The 
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special 
duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s 
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints the Leader and 
at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its Committees.  It also 
appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and external organisations.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Council 
meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please see the 
website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding public 
questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 



 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
6 NOVEMBER 2013 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting 
 

3.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 To receive the record of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council 
held on 2nd October, 2013 and to approve the accuracy thereof 
 

4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 (a)  To receive any questions or petitions from the public, or 
communications submitted by the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive and 
to pass such resolutions thereon as the Council Procedure Rules permit 
and as may be deemed expedient. 
 
(b)  Petition Requiring Debate 
 
The Council’s Petitions Scheme requires that any petition containing over 
5,000 signatures be the subject of debate at the Council meeting.  A 
qualifying petition has been received as follows:- 
 
Petition regarding the Don Valley Stadium 
To debate an e-petition containing 5,487 signatures concerning the Don 
Valley Stadium.  The wording of the petition (which can be viewed at 
www.saveourstadium.co.uk) is as follows:- 

 
“This petition is dedicated to saving an iconic landmark of Sheffield – Don 
Valley Stadium – The stadium is too important to the city and the 
community to be knocked down. The people of Sheffield have paid for the 
stadium over the last twenty years and we deserve the opportunity to see 
it run to its full potential for the community and sporting life of the City.” 
 

5.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 5.1 Questions relating to urgent business – Council Procedure Rule 
16.6(ii). 

 
5.2 Supplementary questions on written questions submitted at this 



 

 

meeting   – Council Procedure Rule 16.4 
 
5.3 Questions on the discharge of the functions of the South Yorkshire 

Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue, Integrated Transport and 
Pensions – Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1985 – Council 
Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

 
 (NB. Minutes of recent meetings of the three South Yorkshire Joint    

Authorities have been made available to all Members of the Council 
via the following link https://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-
meetings/full-council) 

 
 

6.   
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED 
ISSUES 
 

 To consider any changes to the memberships and arrangements for 
meetings of Committees etc., delegated authority, and the appointment of 
representatives to serve on other bodies 
 

7.   
 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT FOR SHEFFIELD 2013 
 

 To receive a presentation by Dr. Jeremy Wight, Director of Public Health, 
on his annual report for 2013 on the health of the people of Sheffield. 
 
A background report is attached.  A copy of the Summary Report of the 
Director of Public Health has previously been circulated to all Members of 
the Council. 
 

8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR MAZHER IQBAL 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) believes Britain’s energy market isn’t working for ordinary families 

and businesses and the cost of electricity and gas is crippling their 
family finances;  

 
(b) regrets that energy bills have risen by almost £300 for families since 

2010 and businesses say it’s the second biggest cost they face and 
is concerned that when the price of energy increases energy 
companies pass this on, but when it drops consumers don’t see 
their bills fall; 

 
(c) notes recent research by Which? estimating that flaws in the market 

have left consumers paying £3.9bn a year over the odds since 
2010; 

 
(d) fully opposes the unfair price rises recently announced by the big 

energy companies including a 10.4% increase in Npower’s dual-fuel 
bills from December, SSE increasing prices by 8.2% from 15th 



 

 

November, British Gas increasing their prices by 9.2% on 23rd 
November and Scottish Power raising prices by 8.6% from 6th 
December; 

 
(e) notes comments from the Chief Executive of Citizens Advice 

speaking about the SSE increase “The price rise will be a blow for 
stretched budgets N Many households are facing a daily battle to 
try to make their frozen incomes cover mounting energy, food and 
travel costs. Further increases will push people into poverty.”;  

 
(f) believes that the increases represent a rip-off and believes that the 

present Government have chosen to defend the big energy 
companies and have failed to stand up for the consumer;  

 
(g) regrets that the Council’s main opposition group’s spokesperson for 

energy has followed the line of the Conservative Party in defending 
the energy companies rather than Sheffield families and is 
extremely concerned by the following comments he made in “Lib 
Dem Voice” on 30th September, 2013 “No energy company has a 
duty to invest in anything” and “To say that energy prices are the 
fault of the energy companies is obviously on one level correct, but 
seems to imply that they have a duty to us rather than their 
shareholders when they set their prices. They have a legal duty not 
to operate a cartel, but beyond this they pitch their prices to 
maximise profits.” 

 
(h) believes that this demonstrates that the main opposition group is 

only concerned with defending the excessive profits of the big 
energy companies and has no concern for Sheffield’s hard pressed 
families who are faced with extortionate increases in their energy 
bills; 

 
(i) welcomes the commitment by The Rt. Hon. Ed Miliband MP to 

freeze energy bills until 2017 upon the election of a Labour 
Government; and 

 
(j) further welcomes the commitment that the next Labour Government 

will reset our energy market so it works for Britain’s families and 
businesses, with a new tough regulator to stop overcharging. 

 
9.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR NEALE GIBSON 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) calls on the Home Secretary to act on the recent report from 

Stonewall on homophobic hate crime showing that: 
 

(i) one in six lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgendered (LGBT) 
people have experienced a homophobic hate crime in the 
last three years; 



 

 

 
(ii) one in ten victims experienced a physical assault as part of 

the incident; 
 
(iii) more than three out of four victims didn’t report their 

experience to the police; 
 
(iv) almost a third didn’t report because they didn’t believe the 

police could or would do anything; 
 
(v) one in four gay or bisexual women have experienced 

domestic abuse in a relationship; 
 
(vi) half of all gay and bisexual men have experienced at least 

one incident of domestic abuse since the age of 16; 
 

(vii) a quarter expect discrimination if reporting a homophobic 
hate crime to the police; and 

 
(viii) more than a third of lesbian, gay and bisexual people from 

black and minority ethnic backgrounds expect discrimination 
from the police; 

 
(b) further notes that when these figures are extrapolated to Sheffield, 

over six thousand residents of the City have experienced 
homophobic hate crime in the last three years, and in recent years 
the total number of reports to the police was an average of 40 per 
year; and 

 
(c) recognises the work that the South Yorkshire Police, lead by Police 

and Crime Commissioner Shaun Wright, are currently undertaking 
with the LGBT groups in the City. 

 
10.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR SHAFFAQ 
MOHAMMED 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) wholeheartedly welcomes the latest labour bulletin, which reported 

an 11% drop in Jobseeker’s Allowance claimants in Sheffield; 
  
(b) furthermore, welcomes reports that 25,000 jobs have been created 

in Yorkshire in the past three months; 
  
(c) further welcomes news that the economy grew by 0.8% in the third 

quarter of 2013 and notes that the International Monetary Fund has 
upgraded its growth forecasts for the UK by more than any other 
advanced economy; 

  
(d) notes that a million private sector jobs have been created since May 



 

 

2010 and contrasts this with the claim of the Leader of Her 
Majesty’s Opposition that the Government’s policies would lead to 
the disappearance of a million jobs; 

  
(e) believes the Liberal Democrats in Government have been crucial in 

re-building Britain’s economy following the economic disaster 
presided over by the last Government; 

  
(f) specifically thanks Liberal Democrats in Government for helping to 

secure measures that will build a stronger economy for Sheffield, 
including: 

  
(i) millions of pounds invested in local businesses through the 

Regional Growth Fund and the Growing Places Fund; 
   

(ii) a new University Technical College to provide the next 
generation of Sheffielders with the skills they need; 

   
(iii) record investment in transport infrastructure including £1 

billion to enable the Streets Ahead project to proceed, 
electrification of Midland Main Line and a Tram/Train pilot; 
and 

   
(iv) a Sheffield Enterprise Zone, which could deliver as many as 

12,000 new jobs; 
  
(g) in particular, highlights the Sheffield City Deal, which the Deputy 

Prime Minister was crucial in securing and has already created 370 
apprenticeships across the city region; 

  
(h) however, notes that other city regions have outpaced Sheffield with 

Greater Birmingham & Solihull having already established 1,351 
apprenticeships and Greater Manchester having  outperformed their 
own target by creating 2,755  apprenticeships; and 

  
(i) therefore, calls upon the Council to drop its anti-business rhetoric 

and work with local partners to ensure the Sheffield City Region 
maximises the potential of the City Deal. 

 
11.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR LEIGH BRAMALL 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) welcomes the success of the present Administration’s RISE 

graduate scheme which has so far filled 28 graduate interns into 24 
businesses;  

 
(b) notes that many students undertake internships shortly after 

graduating and that internships offer a great way to get a ‘foot in the 
door’ after graduating, get training, test out potential future 



 

 

employers and get experience on your CV;  
 
(c) welcomes that the RISE internship scheme brings together 

graduates, who want to work hard and do great things, with 
Sheffield-based businesses who appreciate an injection of energy 
and new ideas;   

 
(d) firmly believes that the scheme will not only give opportunities to 

graduates but will also provide local businesses with an opportunity 
to attract graduates to a range of sectors crucial to the growth of the 
local economy, including engineering, professional and financial 
services, creative and digital industries, to name a selective few; 

 
(e) notes that over 700 applications were received for the graduate 

internships and thanks all applicants, recognising the extremely 
challenging economic climate in gaining employment following 
graduation, noting the high levels of graduate unemployment;  

 
(f) welcomes the positive comments from local businesses about the 

scheme including the comment from one participant, ‘‘We found the 
RISE experience provided us with the confidence to invest in an 
intern with the objective of providing permanent full-time 
employment. The whole process from the initial advisory meetings, 
the communication and collaboration throughout the screening 
stage and the continued support, was and is invaluable to a small 
business such as ours. We have been involved in other 
apprenticeship and work experience schemes in the past and the 
RISE initiative has been by far the most professional and feel it 
provides great value to businesses in the region.” 

 
(g) is therefore extremely disappointed that the main opposition group 

voted against welcoming the scheme at the two previous Council 
meetings and believes that this is the latest Liberal Democrat 
betrayal of students;    

 
(h) is delighted to confirm a further intake has now been approved, 

aiming to get a total of 50 RISE internships into Sheffield’s small 
and medium enterprises by the end of the year which have been 
funded from the Keep Sheffield Working Fund, meaning a further 21 
internships with 21 businesses have been secured for the second 
round of the programme; and 

 
(i) directs that a copy of this Motion be sent to Sheffield University 

Students Union and Sheffield Hallam University Students Union, the 
Sheffield Chamber of Commerce and Federation of Small 
Businesses. 

 
12.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR HELEN MIRFIN-
BOUKOURIS 
 



 

 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) congratulates the League against Cruel Sports for its excellent 

“Manifesto to end Snaring in Great Britain and Northern Ireland.”, 
and 

 
(i) notes the report details that in some instances trapped 

animals can take up to 16 hours to die even when a legal 
snare is used; 

 
(ii) further notes that many of these animals die a horrible 

painful death and that often it is domestic animals such as 
cats that get caught in snares; and 

 
(iii) further asks that this Council offers its support to the League 

against Cruel Sports campaign to get the use of all types of 
snares banned in Great Britain and Northern Ireland; 

 
(b) congratulates erstwhile colleagues from the 1980s who banned the 

use of snares and all blood sports on Council property, including fox 
hunting and hare coursing, and condemns the present 
Government’s promise to hold a free vote on repealing the Hunting 
Act 2004; 

 
(c) re-affirms its ban on blood sports and the use of all types of snares 

on Council land and property; 
 
(d) asks the Chief Executive of Sheffield City Council to ensure all 

Sheffield City Council land leaseholders are reminded of their duties 
of care to animals on Council land; 

 
(e) further instructs that a copy of this motion be sent to all Sheffield’s 

Members of Parliament asking that they raise this Council’s 
opposition to blood sports and the use of any type of snare with the 
Secretary of State for Environment and Rural Affairs, and that they 
encourage the Secretary of State to ban the use of all snares, and 
encourages all Sheffield MPs to vote against any vote that would 
repeal or weaken the Hunting Act 2004;   

 
(f) further asks the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State 

for Environment and Rural Affairs informing him of this Council’s 
opposition to blood sports and the ban placed on them on Sheffield 
City Council land; and 

 
(g) also asks the Chief Executive to inform the Secretary of State for 

Environment and Rural Affairs of this Council’s opposition to any 
repeal or weakening of the Hunting Act 2004.   

 
13.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ANDREW SANGAR 
 



 

 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes that since Sorby House, Forum House and Vestry Hall came 

under the Council’s ownership more than £1.2 million has been 
spent by the Council on the premises in just two years; 

  
(b) further notes with concern reports that another £330,000 has been 

allocated to the buildings within the 2013/14 budget; 
  
(c) believes the Burngreave New Deal for Communities was another 

example of a costly New Labour project, which delivered poor value 
for money and almost no economic benefit for the city; 

  
(d) regrets that at a time when the Administration claim they have been 

forced to withdraw funding from libraries, yet more Council funds 
are being wasted on another Labour ‘white elephant’; and 

  
(e) urges the Administration to ensure no further funds are wasted on 

these buildings and focus on saving treasured local libraries 
instead. 

 
14.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR HELEN MIRFIN-
BOUKOURIS 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) supports the campaign for a National Children’s Day; 
 
(b) welcomes the launch of the campaign for a National Children’s Day 

on 20th November in Sheffield by “Youth Can Achieve” which is 
endorsed by the National Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to 
Children (NSPCC); 

 
(c) encourages schools to celebrate this campaign launch on 20th 

November with games or activities and take this opportunity for a 
discussion with children about their rights to education, healthcare 
and economic opportunity; 

 
(d) acknowledges that although this is a wealthy country there are still 

1.7million children who live in severe poverty; 
 
(e) reminds Members of their responsibilities as corporate parents to 

our Looked After Children; 
 
(f) encourages Members where possible to take time on 20th 

November to engage in an activity supporting young people and 
spreading awareness of the Campaign for a National Children’s 
Day; 

 
(g) wishes the children and adults who will be debating the benefits of a 



 

 

National Children’s Day an enjoyable and productive event; and 
 
(h) requests that a copy of this Notice of Motion  be sent to Sheffield’s 

Members of Parliament and the Children’s Commissioner with a 
view to furthering the Campaign for a National Children’s Day. 

 
15.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JULIE DORE 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) congratulates Sheffield Theatres for their success at the recent UK 

Theatre Awards on 20th October, 2013;  
 
(b) notes that Sheffield Theatres received awards in four different 

categories: Best New Play, Best Supporting Performance, Best 
Musical Production and Best Touring Production; 

 
(c) congratulates Sheffield Theatres’ Artistic Director Daniel Evans, 

whose plays ‘This is My Family’ and ‘The Full Monty’ won the Best 
Musical Production and Best Touring Production Awards 
respectively;  

 
(d) further congratulates Siân Phillips for winning Best Supporting 

Performance for her role in ‘This Is My Family’ and Mike Bartlett 
who wrote ‘Bull’ the winner of the Best New Play;  

 
(e) believes these awards highlight the contribution Sheffield Theatres 

makes to the City and thanks Sheffield Theatres staff and trustees 
for their hard work; and 

 
(f) directs that a copy of this Motion be sent to Sheffield Theatres and 

that letters of congratulations be sent to those mentioned above 
who have received individual awards. 

 
16.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR IAN AUCKLAND 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) believes it is unacceptable to treat motorists as a cash cow for the 

Council; 
  
(b) recalls the annual parking enforcement reports introduced by the 

last Administration to bring transparency to parking services, which 
were nationally recognised as leading practice; 

  
(c) notes the recent report of the Transport Select Committee, which 

called on every local authority to publish an annual parking report 
outlining revenue gained from parking and how this money is spent; 

  
(d) regrets that under the current Administration the annual parking 



 

 

enforcement reports have ceased and that not a single report has 
been published covering the current Administration’s time in control; 
and 

  
(e) therefore, calls upon the Administration to immediately publish a 

record of the revenue raised by parking services and how it has 
been spent. 

 
17.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JOE OTTEN 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes the #WhyIAmIn campaign supporting membership of the 

European Union, which was launched by the Liberal Democrat MP 
for Sheffield Hallam, and has gained support from Sir Richard 
Branson, among others; 

  
(b) believes remaining part of the European Union is vital to the long 

term security of Sheffield businesses and to building a stronger 
local economy; and 

  
(c) calls upon Sheffield businesses and public sector organisations to 

highlight the importance of remaining within the European Union in 
the run-up to the 2014 European Parliament elections. 

 

 

Chief Executive  
 
Dated this 29 day of October 2013 
 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Council will be held on 4 December 2013 at 
the Town Hall 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
 
New standards arrangements were introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  The new 
regime made changes to the way that members’ interests are registered and 
declared.   
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you 
become aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the 
meeting, participate further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at 
any meeting at which you are present at which an item of business 
which affects or relates to the subject matter of that interest is under 
consideration, at or before the consideration of the item of business or 
as soon as the interest becomes apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

•  Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain, which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes. 

  

•  Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from your council or authority) made or provided within the relevant 
period* in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This 
includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within 
the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 2

*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you 
tell the Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.  

  

•  Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner (or a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, has a beneficial interest) and your council or authority -  

o under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to 

be executed; and  

o which has not been fully discharged. 

  

•  Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, have and which is within the area of your council or 
authority.  

  

•  Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse 
or your civil partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council 
or authority for a month or longer.  

  

•  Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 

 - the landlord is your council or authority; and  

-   the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner,   has a beneficial interest. 

 

•  Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner 
has in securities of a body where -  
 

 (a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in 
the area of your council or authority; and  

 
 (b) either -  

 the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
 if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, 
or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class.  

  

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded 
as affecting the well-being or financial standing (including interests in 

Page 2



 3

land and easements over land) of you or a member of your family or a 
person or an organisation with whom you have a close association to 
a greater extent than it would affect the majority of the Council Tax 
payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or electoral area for 
which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 

 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as 
DPIs but are in respect of a member of your family (other than a 
partner) or a person with whom you have a close association. 

 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable 
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk  
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield S1 2HH, on Wednesday 2 October 2013, at 2.00 pm, pursuant to notice 
duly given and Summonses duly served. 
 

PRESENT 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Peter Rippon) 

 
1 Arbourthorne Ward 10 Dore & Totley Ward 19 Mosborough Ward 
 Julie Dore 

Jack Scott 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
 David Barker 

Isobel Bowler 
Tony Downing 
 

2 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 11 East Ecclesfield Ward 20 Nether Edge Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Roy Munn 
Clive Skelton 

 Garry Weatherall 
Steve Wilson 
Joyce Wright 
 

 Nikki Bond 
Anders Hanson 
Qurban Hussain 

3 Beighton Ward 12 Ecclesall Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Helen Mirfin-Boukouris 

Chris Rosling-Josephs 
Ian Saunders 

 Penny Baker 
Roger Davison 
Diana Stimely 
 

 John Campbell 
Martin Lawton 
Lynn Rooney 

4 Birley Ward 13 Firth Park Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 

 Denise Fox 
Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 

 Sheila Constance 
Alan Law 
Chris Weldon 
 

 Peter Price 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
Peter Rippon 

5 Broomhill Ward 14 Fulwood Ward 23 Southey Ward 

 Jayne Dunn 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
Stuart Wattam 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Leigh Bramall 
Tony Damms 
Gill Furniss 

6 Burngreave Ward 15 Gleadless Valley Ward 24 Stannington Ward 

 Jackie Drayton 
Ibrar Hussain 
Talib Hussain 

 Steve Jones 
Cate McDonald 
Tim Rippon 

 David Baker 
Katie Condliffe 
Vickie Priestley 
 

7 Central Ward 16 Graves Park Ward 25 Stockbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Jillian Creasy 
Mohammad Maroof 
Robert Murphy 

 Ian Auckland 
Bob McCann 
Denise Reaney 

 Richard Crowther 
Philip Wood 
 

      

8 Crookes Ward 17 Hillsborough Ward 26 Walkey Ward 

 Geoff Smith  Janet Bragg 
Bob Johnson 
George Lindars-Hammond 

 Ben Curran 
Neale Gibson 
Nikki Sharpe 

      

9 Darnall Ward 18 Manor Castle Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 

 Harry Harpham 
Mazher Iqbal 
Mary Lea 
 

 Jenny Armstrong 
Terry Fox 
Pat Midgley 

 Trevor Bagshaw 
Adam Hurst 
Alf Meade 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 

     Mick Rooney 
Jackie Satur 
Ray Satur 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



 
 

Page 6



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 3 of 46 
 

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alison Brelsford, Rob Frost, 
Keith Hill and John Robson. 

 
 
2.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Councillor Bryan Lodge declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in Notice of 
Motion numbered 12 on the Summons for the Council meeting (relating to City 
Centre Events) because he owns a business in the City Centre.  

 
 
3.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 The minutes of the meeting of the City Council held on 4th September 2013 were 
approved as a correct record. 

 
 
4.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4.1 Communications 

  
 Rugby League Championship 
 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) congratulated Sheffield Eagles on 

retaining their Championship title, with a victory in the Grand Final on 29th 
September. 

 
4.2 Petitions 

  
 (a) Petition Regarding the Demolition of Don Valley Stadium 
  
 The Council received an electronic petition containing 620 signatures and 

requesting the Council to stop the proposed demolition of Don Valley Stadium and 
to look at alternative uses for the Stadium.  

  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Rob Creasey. He 

explained that he was a community sports coach in Sheffield and had worked with 
schools and Sheffield International Venues as well as being a user of Don Valley 
Stadium. He stated that the Friends of Don Valley Stadium were campaigning to 
develop the stadium as a community asset and widen its use for sport and the 
performing arts. 
 
He stated that people had been shocked at the announcement of the stadium’s 
closure as the stadium was the second best such facility in the country, after the 
Olympics stadium in London. Users of the stadium discussed how to put together 
a plan to enable its use for sport, recreation and schools and community use by 
utilising the Localism Act and nominating the stadium as a community asset.  A 
feasibility and business plan would need to be developed. 

Page 7



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 4 of 46 
 

 
The nomination to register the Stadium as a community asset was made in July. It 
was turned down, at the last moment, and the response suggested that the O2 
Arena in London was an alternative similar venue for people in Sheffield. The 
campaign group were seeking legal advice in relation to the application. 
 
Rob Creasey stated that the campaign would welcome the Council’s support in 
putting any progress toward demolition on hold and give people in the community 
time to work up proposals. He referred to the Tour de France in 2014 and that it 
would be a good opportunity for it to finish outside the stadium. He also reminded 
Councillors that they were elected to serve their constituents. 

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Isobel Bowler, the Cabinet Member 

for Culture, Sport and Leisure. Councillor Bowler stated that she could not address 
the application to register the stadium as an asset of community value as it was 
subject to a legal challenge and it would be wrong for her to say anything in 
relation to this aspect. 

  
 Investment was being made in Woodbourn Road Stadium, with the support of 

Sport England and England Athletics and the stadium would be used as a training 
facility and had the support of both Sheffield Harriers and the City of Sheffield 
Athletics Club. At Woodbourn Road, athletics would be the priority. The facility 
was to be managed and maintained by Sheffield Hallam University and would 
open from Sunday 6 October. 

  
 Councillor Bowler stated that consultation relating to Don Valley Stadium had 

begun some 10 months ago. In August, she had asked the Director of Culture and 
Environment to meet with those members of the community who were developing 
a business plan and three meetings had taken place and information had been 
shared including profit and loss accounts. Don Valley Stadium had made a 700k 
deficit although it was accepted that costs might be reduced if the facility was 
community run. 

  
 £1 million of essential works were required at Don Valley and the costs of moth-

balling, including insurance and security were significant and estimated to be 
150K for a six month period and such expenditure would impact elsewhere on the 
Council’s budget. 

  
 Councillor Bowler said that she did admire the passion and enthusiasm which the 

members of the community and users of Don Valley stadium had shown. 
However, she believed that outdoor athletics had a home at Woodbourn Road. 
She also noted that the City was close to finding a new home for the Sheffield 
Eagles. She stated that she was optimistic about the future of athletics in Sheffield 
and the City’s status as a City of sport. 

  
 (b) Petition Objecting to Anti-Social Behaviour in the Midland Street/Charlotte 

Road Area 
  
 The Council received a petition containing 21 signatures objecting to anti-social 

behaviour in the Midland Street/Charlotte Road area. 

Page 8



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 5 of 46 
 

  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by a member of the 

public, who stated that residents living on the street needed help. Over the past 
three years, there had been a series of break-ins and incidents relating to alcohol, 
litter and drug taking. They asked for the Council’s help to move the family who 
were allegedly causing the problems referred to and which, they stated, would be 
the best thing for the area.  

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Harry Harpham, the Deputy Leader 

and Cabinet Member for Homes and Neighbourhoods. Councillor Harpham said 
that the conditions which had been described were unacceptable and that people 
should not be expected to live in such conditions. On receipt of the petition, he 
stated that he had contacted both the anti-social behaviour team and South 
Yorkshire Police, who had both responded that they had no record of complaints 
from residents of Midland Street and Charlotte Road about these issues.  

  
 Councillor Harpham stated that, so that he could help, he would ask for the lead 

petitioner’s contact details with a view to visiting residents and seeing for himself 
the conditions which had been described so that the matters now raised could be 
dealt with. 

  
 (c) Petition Complaining of Litter on the Streets Around Longley Sixth Form 

College 
 
The Council received a petition containing 79 signatures complaining of litter on 
the streets around Longley Sixth Form College. 

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Jack Scott, the Cabinet Member for 

Environment, Recycling and Streetscene. 
  
 (d) Petition Requesting that Glover Road be Made One-Way 

 
The Council received a petition containing 105 signatures, requesting that Glover 
Road be made one-way. 

  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Maxine Walton who 

stated that the petition requested the alteration of Glover Road into a one-way 
system from Mickley Lane to the traffic lights. She pointed to the dangers 
presented by speeding traffic from Mickley Lane and the need for vehicles to 
mount the pavement, to enable traffic from the opposite direction to pass and the 
fact that the pavement was only constructed on one side of the road, which 
presented a danger to pedestrians. She stated that Glover Road was a rat run.  

  
 Recently, the road had been closed at the Mickley Lane end and vehicles had 

driven down it and made illegal u-turns onto Baslow Road. There had also been 
near accidents on the pelican crossing. A recent traffic count recorded 200 
vehicles in 20 minutes. 

  
 She suggested that speed humps would not be solution to the problem of 

speeding vehicles as cars would simply speed up in between them. The 

Page 9



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 6 of 46 
 

petitioners’ suggested solution was to install cameras on the existing lights to 
identify vehicles which were speeding or in relation to other traffic violations. The 
cost of such a scheme could be funded by income from fines. 

  
 Local people were concerned that there could be an injury or possibly a death due 

to the dangers presented by traffic on Glover Road and the Council was requested 
to please make the Road safe for everyone. 

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Leigh Bramall, the Cabinet Member 

for Business, Skills and Development. Councillor Bramall thanked the petitioners 
for bringing the matter to the Council and he stated that the petition was the first 
representation that had been made in relation to the issues raised. He informed 
the petitioners that the Council did receive a considerable number of requests for 
such highways schemes. Each request was assessed and scored and a priority 
list was produced when the Streets Ahead scheme went into an area, and an 
assessment was carried out with local ward councillors. The issue would now be 
put into the process. 

  
 (e) Petition Requesting Speed Reduction Measures on Albert Road 

 
The Council received a petition containing 69 signatures requesting speed 
reduction measures on Albert Road. 

  
 Representations of behalf of the petitioners were made by Keith Wrigley who 

stated that he was speaking on behalf of the local residents. The traffic had 
become a worse problem during the past 10 years in which he had lived on Albert 
Road, which had previously been a rat run to Chesterfield Road. Speed humps 
were introduced but motorists had subsequently complained that these were too 
high, causing the bottom of car exhausts to scrape over them and the height of the 
humps was lowered and some of them were almost flat. This enabled vehicles to 
travel at speed once more, especially in the stretches of road in between speed 
humps.  

  
 A dog had recently been run over and other pets had been killed on Albert Road 

and there was increasing concern over the safety of children. Some residents’ 
parked vehicles had also become damaged. The petition requested the 
implementation of a 20mph speed limit, although this would need to be enforced. 

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Leigh Bramall, Cabinet Member for 

Business, Skills and Development. Councillor Bramall stated that the Streets 
Ahead programme was due to be in the area covering Albert Road in 2014 and 
this programme would renew existing highways infrastructure and there may be 
an opportunity to look at the size and orientation of speed humps on Albert Road. 

  
 In relation to 20 mph speed limits, there had been cuts to the available funding. 

However, the Council was introducing 20 mph zones in 7 areas. Schemes were 
based on the relevant criteria and assessment. In the longer term, he stated 20 
mph zones would be rolled out to all suitable residential areas. 

  
 (f) Petition Objecting to the Proposed Withdrawal of Children’s Centre 

Page 10



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 7 of 46 
 

Prevention Services 
 
The Council received a petition containing 209 signatures and objecting to the 
proposed withdrawal of Children’s Centre Prevention Services. 

  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Colin Walker, who was 

a member of a Dad’s support group which was held at Sharrow Surestart Centre. 
He stated that people had been informed that the Dad’s support group would 
cease as there was no-one to run the service, unless this could be done on a 
voluntary basis. More widely, preventative services were closing down across 
Sheffield. 

  
 He stated that the tender process and the way in which the service had been 

divided prevented certain organisations from being able to bid to run services. A 
professional support service with expertise was required to support groups, 
including groups for disabled children and first time mums. Volunteers also 
needed support and in the long term their use was not sustainable, compared to a 
professional support service. He pointed to the need to ensure the safeguarding 
and health and safety of children and young people. He also believed that the 
consultation which had been undertaken only days before the closure of his group 
did not constitute proper consultation. 

  
 The closing of prevention services would have long term impacts for the support of 

children and young people. Prevention services that were deployed early 
minimised the help required by families in the longer term and were better than 
having to use intervention services. 

  
 The prevention services were already budgeted for and it was not acceptable to 

say that no one could be found to run services.   The petition asked the Council to 
take emergency action in relation to this matter. 

  
 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Jackie Drayton, Cabinet Member for 

Children, Young People and Families. Councillor Drayton stated that she 
appreciated the petitioners submitting the petition to Council and said that the 
issues raised were very important. She reminded the petitioners that the Council 
had had budget cuts of over £230m over the last 3 years and that on top of that, 
Children, Young People and Families had a further cut of £6.8m.  She added that 
a £3.5m cut had to be found in Early Years and that it was not possible to take 
that much out of a budget and it not make a difference. 

  
 As the Council had 3 contracts that were coming to an end, in Early Years it was 

decided to review those contracts and to make savings from management, 
administration and premises costs and to retender new contracts for intervention 
services and also prevention services across the City. The Council had protected 
services wherever possible and had specifically targeted the deployment of early 
intervention services and those services to the most vulnerable children and 
families. These included health, parenting, breastfeeding support and debt advice. 

  
 Following the contracts coming to an end and the tender process, unfortunately 

the winning providers refused the contracts they had put in for and were offered.  

Page 11



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 8 of 46 
 

Therefore, the Council had to review the tender contract and service specification.  
This meant the Groups who had a worker supporting them would not have one in 
the future. Officers had gone to speak with all the groups that would be affected, 
to explain the circumstances and to ask whether anyone would wish to volunteer 
to help keep the groups going.  The Officers also stated the groups could continue 
to meet in the Centres and there would still be other services going on. Councillor 
Drayton stated that she believed that there had been an offer from a volunteer at 
Sharrow, although from the information given in the petition, it seemed that the 
position had changed. 

  
 Councillor Drayton stressed that Children’s Centres were still open, although the 

Council unfortunately could not provide workers to support groups, such as the 
Dad’s group at Sharrow. However, they were doing everything they could to 
ensure the most vulnerable children and families were being protected and that 
groups were enabled to continue with the help of parent/carer volunteers if they 
wanted to. 

  
4.3 Public Questions 
  
 (a) Public Questions concerning prevention services for children, young people 

and families 
  
 Hilda Muleahy stated that, according to the initial tender, the Council was 

budgeting to run prevention services until April 2014 and she referred to the 
crucial role of such services in child protection. She asked why the service was 
being cut now, rather than being brought in-house? 

  
 Linda Edwards stated that in carrying out the re-design of early years services, the 

Council had said that financial savings would be made and quality would improve. 
Since then, the Council had been taken through a Judicial Review process and 
the Court had said that the case should be heard in relation to people’s voices 
being heard. She stated that people were being affected by the changes to early 
years provision and asked how the Council was planning to meet its statutory 
duties to provide information, early health advice and support at outreach sites 
now that workers in preventative services had been withdrawn. 

  
 Linda Edwards also referred to the lot 1 (prevention services) tender and asked 

how the Council was to amend and placate people regarding TUPE (Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment)) information and she stated that it was 
illegal to have volunteers running services, which people had been employed to 
do. 

  
 In relation to prevention services, she stated that only 4 of the 9 available 

contracts were agreed and asked what criteria were used in relation to a failed 
contract or tender that led to the conclusion that led to the withdrawal of the 
service. She stated that lot 2 (intervention) services were moving to the MAST 
(Multi-Agency Support Teams) and asked what savings had been made in relation 
to lot 2 and whether existing family support workers would be subject to TUPE as 
they were being taken in – house. She indicated that a more detailed response in 
writing would be acceptable. 

Page 12



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 9 of 46 
 

  
 Sarah Wealthall asked what has happened to the money allocated for prevention 

services and why staff in prevention services were not subject to TUPE in the 
same way as those in intervention services. She stated the families need both 
prevention and intervention services. 

  
 Chrissy Meleady stated that she had previously raised the issue of bullying and 

intimidation at Sheffield Children’s Centre. She said that people had been evicted 
from the premises in relation to money which they did not owe, heating had been 
turned off and people using the Centre were subject to other examples of 
victimisation. People were also redirected to other grade 3 private provision and 
she stated that she had a Council document which referred children in Sharrow to 
another area. She asked why has the victimisation and intimidation continued at 
Sheffield Children’s Centre and other children’s centres. 

  
 She stated that 100 mothers had come forward as volunteers in partnership with 

the Council. She asked why the Council was carrying through the policies of the 
Government, which she stated was destroying people’s lives. 

  
 Joy French stated that she worked as a volunteer in a faith organisation and 

previously worked in CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services). She 
stated that there was evidence which says that preventative work with families 
with young children develops attachment and attunement. Cuts in such services 
inevitably leads to increased problems in other areas and costs in relation to 
education, social care, the criminal justice system and health services. She asked 
is this not short sighted economic planning? 

  
 Carl Birkinshaw, stated that he was a member of the Sharrow Dad’s group and 

asked why money had been wasted in putting a service out to tender and was 
concerned that as part of the process, the service had been broken up into 6 
pieces. He asked how is the consultation being done and what communication 
was being done in relation to the results of the tender process. 

  
 Javier Heinendez asked what the Council’s plans were for Sharrow Surestart 

Centre, referring to it as a place where children can play and families receive 
support. 

  
 A question was asked by Matt concerning the cost of the tender process and 

asking how much it would cost to keep the Sharrow Dad’s group running. 
  
 A question was asked on behalf of Karen as to what will happen next year when 

free early learning places for 2 year olds are introduced more widely and nurseries 
and early years’ services have closed? 

  
 Theo Stamose stated that the Sharrow Surestart Dad’s group was presented with 

a paper on 21 September, stating that the provision of prevention services 
commissioned by the Council would cease. However, on 30 September a briefing 
paper was seen which stated that the activities at the Sharrow Surestart Centre 
were not closing. He asked which of these was true. 

  

Page 13



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 10 of 46 
 

 Sally Pearse stated that her organisation had bid for one of the early years’ 
services which was subject to a tender process. She referred to the limited 
timescales and to the fact that as part of the process, a consortium was set up and 
the bid put forward. Having been successful in the bid, they had found that there 
were additional liabilities relating to TUPE. She asked who approved, what she 
believed was a deeply flawed tender process which was liable to fail and who was 
responsible for the gaps in due diligence. What was happening to the £375K 
which was allocated to prevention services and to the early intervention funding of 
£81K.  

  
 In response, the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families, 

Councillor Jackie Drayton, responded by thanking people for their passion and 
commitment to early years, which was needed, especially at this particular time. 

  
 Councillor Drayton stated that in reference to the Dad’s group at Sharrow, at the 

time when an officer had gone to speak with members of the group, an individual 
had been keen to volunteer to support the group in future, although from the 
information given in the petition, the position had changed. 

  
 The Sharrow Children’s Centre would remain open and would continue to provide 

services including health and breastfeeding services. The Dad’s group would be 
welcome to continue to meet at the Children’s Centre. 

  
 She stated that she agreed with the points which had been raised concerning 

attainment and attunement, which were vital and reflected in the Council’s 
commitment to protect intervention services. The Council was working with the 
voluntary sector on a Lottery bid, which it was hoped would result in significant 
funding for early years provision over a period of 10 years. 

  
 Councillor Drayton stated that in relation to any allegations of victimisation relating 

to Children’s Centres, she would request that the specific details, including who 
was involved and where and when the incident occurred, were provided to her to 
follow up.  She also stated that she wanted to reassure members of the public that 
the Council always took any allegation seriously and any incident would be 
investigated thoroughly by the legal team and possibly handed on the police. 

  
 Councillor Drayton confirmed that the Council would continue to meet its statutory 

responsibilities together with its partners in the health service. The Council are 
currently in the process of making arrangements to transfer those existing 
intervention staff, who are currently employed by the NHS, Action for Children and 
Family Action and who wish to transfer into Sheffield City Council, under the 
TUPE agreement.  

  
 Councillor Drayton reassured the questioner that the tender was carefully written 

and it was clear in the documents and information that went out that there were 
TUPE implications for the contract and it was also an issue which was mentioned 
to bidders to be sure they understood the issues. Services were put out to tender 
and bidders submitted their applications.  The applications were scored and three 
providers were informed that they had won a contract. Three of the successful 
bidders refused the contract. The bidders who had come in second place were 

Page 14



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 11 of 46 
 

then asked whether they wished to take the contracts and they also refused. One 
provider had accepted and was awarded the contract. 

  
 Councillor Drayton stated that she would investigate the process relating to the 

tenders for services. She added that the funding which the Council received for 
free early learning was exactly what the Council had lost in relation to funding 
previously made available for early years provision. 

  
 Councillor Drayton stated that she would write to those people who had asked for 

a written response to questions. 
  
 (b) Public Question concerning Taxi Operating Licences 
  
 Jen Dunstan asked a question concerning operating licences for taxi operators 

and drivers. She stated that in a particular case, drivers had been expected work 
under the company’s umbrella operator’s licence. She asked what the Council 
was going to do about this situation. 

  
 In response, the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and Leisure, Councillor Isobel 

Bowler, stated that she would refer the question to the Council’s Head of 
Licensing to investigate. 

  
 (c) Public Question concerning Budget Cuts 
  
 Gareth Lane stated that he welcomed the fact that Councillor Julie Dore had 

committed to support the anti-austerity campaign. He said that a demonstration 
against austerity was to be held in Sheffield on 8th November 2013, organised by 
the People’s Assembly. He asked if Councillor Dore and the Council would 
support the demonstration. 

  
 In response, Councillor Julie Dore, the Leader of the Council stated that she 

believed that the Government’s austerity programme was unnecessary in terms of 
the speed at which it was being implemented and the particular places and people 
it affected. There was a disproportionate effect on people and places in the north 
of the country and on the most vulnerable people. 

  
 Councillor Dore stated that people have a right to hold a demonstration in a free 

society, even if others did not agree with their cause. If people wished to hold a 
demonstration they should abide by the relevant legislation. She asked that, if the 
organisers wanted specific actions to be taken by the Council in relation to the 
planned demonstration, they should make a request to the Council. 

  
 (d) Public question concerning Zero Hours Contracts 
  
 Jackson Baines asked if the Council used zero hours contracts and where and 

what steps were taken to combat the use of such contracts and get fair conditions 
for people? 

  
 The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources, Councillor Bryan Lodge, 

responded that the Council did use zero hours contracts following negotiation with 

Page 15



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 12 of 46 
 

the trades unions. He stated that there was ambiguity and misinterpretation in 
relation to zeros hours contracts. Employees with zero hours contracts had terms 
and conditions which were in line with those for other full time employees. 

  
 For services which were provided by other parties, the Council expected 

employers to behave in a certain way and there were expectations in tenders for 
Council services in relation to terms and conditions. The Council worked with 
trades unions in this regard. 

  
 The Council did not approve of circumstances where some private businesses 

exploited the use of zero hours contracts. 
  
 (e) Public Question concerning Don Valley Stadium 
  
 Tim Appleyard stated, in relation to the process for registering the Don Valley 

Stadium as a community asset, it had been difficult to obtain information 
concerning the full three year figures. He also stated that it was felt that the facility 
had been run down over the past 3 years. A Freedom of Information request 
would be submitted to obtain all of the information that was required. He made 
reference to reports on land licences prior to Don Valley Stadium being closed. He 
asked the cost of demolishing the Stadium and asked whether it would be better 
to save the building.  

  
 Councillor Isobel Bowler, the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and Leisure, said 

that she was sorry that it was felt that the Council had not provided enough 
information. She stated that the costs relating to Don Valley Stadium were 
available on the Council’s website. The cost of closing Don Valley Stadium and 
opening the Woodbourn Road Stadium were £486k. The cost to demolish the Don 
Valley Stadium had been estimated by surveyors and was included in the 
Council’s consideration of this issue. However, the demolition work was subject to 
commercial procurement and she was not able to share those estimated costs at 
the present time. There was a need for significant capital expenditure on the Don 
Valley Stadium, although main issue was the continuing revenue costs and the 
fact that facilities for athletics in the City could be provided at Woodbourn Road.  

  
 Councillor Bowler stated that if Mr Appleyard wanted more information, she would 

do everything that she could to make sure that it was made available. 
  
 (f) Public question concerning Care Providers’ Pay 
  
 The following question was asked on behalf of Jen Dunstan:  
  
 Why was a care provider in Sheffield not paying their base-rate staff the minimum 

wage and as the commissioner of their services, the City Council should ensure 
that this matter was rectified. 

  
 The Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Independent Living, Councillor Mary 

Lea, responded that the Council had contracts with a number of independent 
sector providers and the Council took seriously its duty of care to people that it 
cared for. She said that she would discuss the matter with Council officers and 

Page 16



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 13 of 46 
 

would contact the questioner with a response. 
  
 (g) Public question concerning Support for Hard Working People 
  
 Jack Hetherington asked what the Council is doing for hard working people. He 

referred to the industrial action by teachers on 1st October and asked what the 
Council was doing to support people and when was the Council going to start 
standing up to the Government and doing something in relation to the cuts.  

  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded that the Government 

was imposing hardship, particularly on the people of Sheffield.  
  
 (h) Public questions concerning the Library Service 
  
 David Kirkham asked questions which he directed to the Chief Executive of the 

Council. He referred to comments attributed to John Mothersole in the Local 
Government News concerning the library service and asked why he had made the 
comments.  He expressed concern that there was a suggestion that a fourth-rate 
service would be implemented. He asked whether the Chief Executive believed 
that the use of volunteers to manage library services was the appropriate way 
forward and stated that this would allow the Council to abrogate accountability and 
responsibility for services.  

  
 Patrick Black referred to the proposed cuts to the library service, including the 

closing of up to 15 libraries, loss of 75 jobs and ceasing the mobile library service. 
He asked where the cuts would end and referred to the Council’s role in 
implementing the austerity cuts. 

  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded that people should 

not necessarily believe everything that they read in the papers 
  
 The Cabinet Member for Communities and Inclusion, Councillor Mazher Iqbal, 

responded in relation to the Local Government News article that one element of 
what was said had been quoted. He stated that the Council did not set the national 
budget. The Council and other cities in the north of the country was facing 
disproportionate and unfair cuts to its funding and in the next two years the 
Council had to find additional savings of £80 million. 

  
 Councillor Iqbal stated that the Council was carrying out consultation concerning 

the library service and no decisions had been made at this time. He had spoken 
with groups at Totley, Stannington, Newfield   and Woodhouse and 30 
organisations had said that they wished to work with the Council to retain library 
services. 

  
 (i) Public Questions concerning the ‘Bedroom Tax’ 
  
 Oliver Clayton stated that the Council had pledged to protect residents with 

regards to the effects of the ‘Bedroom tax’ and he asked, in this context, what 
constitutes engagement with the Council? 

  

Page 17



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 14 of 46 
 

 A question was asked on behalf of Jen Dunstan as follows: why is the Council 
stoic in implementing the Bedroom tax when it has been admitted that the 
measure is running at a deficit? 

  
 The Deputy Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Homes and 

Neighbourhoods, Councillor Harry Harpham, responded by referring to the Labour 
Party’s statement at its party conference that it would scrap the Bedroom Tax and 
introduce measures relating to energy prices. Councillor Harpham contrasted this 
with the priorities of the party conferences of the other Political Parties. 

  
 Central Government policy meant that people would not be paid Housing Benefit 

to cover the cost of their rent if their home had what were considered to be spare 
bedrooms.  

  
 The Council had engaged with people who would be affected by the Bedroom tax 

by visiting them and speaking with them about a range of issues including 
budgeting and access to advice such as from Citizens Advice. The Council had 
also put in place a debt advice worker to advise tenants who were at risk of being 
in rent arrears and to help them access finance through the Credit Union. 

  
 Councillor Harpham stated that, if the Council had undertaken all of that activity 

with a tenant and the tenant refused to engage in the process, only then would the 
Council have to take other action which was open to it. 

  
 (j) Public Question concerning the nature of ‘a question’ 
  
 Nigel Slack asked “What’s in a question?” 
  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded that she would need 

the question’s background or context. The answer to a question depended upon 
the question, the individual and why they were asking it and the nature of the 
response they would want to receive. 

  
 (k) Public Question concerning the Sustainable Communities Act  
  
 Nigel Slack asked why do the Council’s amendments to item 14 (on the Council 

Summons) concerning the Sustainable Communities Act, display an apparent 
disregard for allowing the community the opportunity to come up with ideas and a 
bias towards big business and the national retail companies, rather than local 
small businesses with the added benefits they bring to the table?  

  
 The Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and Development, Councillor Leigh 

Bramall, stated that the Council was asked to look at the supermarket levy, which 
would apply to all retailers over a certain size, which would include retailers such 
as WH Smith, Marks and Spencer, Primark and John Lewis. The development of 
the City Centre was a crucial aspect of the future prosperity of Sheffield and it was 
the Council’s responsibility to help to grow the economy. Many new small 
businesses had been introduced at Chapel Walk, for example, and it was 
important to support small businesses in the City Centre. 

  

Page 18



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 15 of 46 
 

 It was not felt that the proposed levy on supermarkets would be beneficial to the 
City. Business Rates were paid to the Government and Sheffield was a net 
beneficiary of the income from business Rates because of its specific needs and 
the City was therefore reliant on Business Rates. It was a crucial policy to bring 
about growth in the Business Rate base. The proposed levy would be most likely 
to damage such an increase in the Business Rate base and, in turn, the ability to 
fund basic Council services. 

  
 (l) Public Questions concerning Freedom of Information Act 
  
 Martin Brighton stated that it has been brought to the attention of the Council 

before, that costs for failing to comply with the Freedom of Information Act are 
racking up at the expense of the taxpayer. However, he stated, since last month, 
there have been further serious failures. Mr Brighton asked:  
 

 (1) Doesn’t the Leader care; and 
  
 (2) When will officers and elected Members be held to account 
  
 Mr Brighton stated that an offending elected Member blames this citizen for the 

costs incurred that force the Council to disclose information that the law says 
should have been made publicly available and asked: 
 
(3) Does the Leader agree with this kind of character slur? 

  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded and  stated that she 

was not aware of Freedom of Information requests where costs are ‘racking up’ 
and asked Mr Brighton to let her have the details. She stated that she did care 
about the expenditure of the Council as the Council now had less money because 
of government funding cuts. 

  
 (m) Public Question concerning Keeping Promises 
  
 Mr Brighton stated that at Cabinet, the Leader agreed that elected Members can 

be expected to keep their promises, yet an elected Member continues to flout her 
leadership. He stated that the information has already been provided. He asked, 
was this citizen just being patronised? 

  
 In response, the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, stated that she 

expected elected Members to keep promises, this was not patronising where it 
was a genuine promise.  

  
 (n) Public Question concerning prejudice 
  
 Mr Brighton stated that, at Cabinet, the Leader made it clear that the principle of 

innocent until proven guilty applies, yet is doing nothing about an elected Member 
who supports sanction on prejudice admittedly, and [he quoted] “on the basis of 
no evidence”. He asked what message does this send across the nation. 

  
 In response, the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, stated that she 

Page 19



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 16 of 46 
 

believed in the principle of innocent until proven guilty. 
  
 (o) Public Questions concerning Criminal Record Bureau (CRB) checks 
  
 Mr Brighton stated that many in this Chamber will recall 5 November 2008, when 

this citizen was vilified by a previous Leader, for simply claiming that there were 
no CRB checks in place for Council-sponsored activity. Events have since shown 
this citizen to have been correct all along. He stated that meanwhile, it has been 
published how in 2006, a regional Tory leader was invited to an RMBC meeting 
and asked to keep quiet about child abuse. The errant senior manager came to 
Sheffield City Council shortly afterwards, prompting the questions of 2008. 

  
 Mr Brighton asked the following questions: 
  
 (1) What does this say about this Council’s application of due diligence; and 
  
 (2) When will this Council genuinely listen? 
  
 In response, the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, stated that the 

particular case concerning Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council was the 
subject of an inquiry and she could not comment on the case, which was of a 
serious nature.  

  
 (p) Public Question concerning review of Answers to Previous Questions 
  
 Mr Brighton stated that, at last month’s full Council, the Leader answered 

questions from this citizen and was asked in writing to review those answers. He 
stated that no review has taken place. He asked, given his first question above, 
what example does this set for the Council. 

  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore responded that in respect of the 

answers that she gave at the last Council meeting, she had just answered the 
questions again. 

 
 
5.  
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

5.1 Urgent Business 
  
 There were no questions relating to urgent business under the provisions of 

Council Procedure Rule 16.6 (ii). 
  
5.2 Questions 
  
 A schedule of questions to Cabinet Members, submitted in accordance with 

Council Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written answers, was circulated 
and supplementary questions under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 
16.4 were asked and were answered by the appropriate Cabinet Members. 

  
5.3 South Yorkshire Joint Authorities 

Page 20



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 17 of 46 
 

  
 There were no questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue, Integrated Transport, Pensions or 
Police under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.6 (i). 

 
 
6.  
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Pat Midgley, seconded by Councillor 
Gill Furniss, that (a) approval be given to the following changes to the 
memberships of Boards, etc:- 

  
 Economic and Environmental 

Wellbeing Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee 

- Councillor Keith Hill to replace Councillor 
Joe Otten 

    
 Locality Working – Lead Ward Councillors:- 
  
 Arbourthorne - Councillor Jack Scott to replace Councillor 

John Robson 
    
 Graves Park - Councillor Denise Reaney to replace 

Councillor Ian Auckland 
    
 (b) representatives be appointed to other bodies as follows:- 
  
 Seven Hills Leisure Trust - Councillor Neale Gibson to replace 

Councillor David Barker 
    
 South Yorkshire Police and 

Crime Panel 
- Councillor Nikki Sharpe to replace 

Councillor Helen Mirfin-Boukouris 
    
 (c) it be noted that, in accordance with the authority given by the City Council at 

its Annual Meeting held on 15th May 2013, the Chief Executive had authorised the 
appointment of Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards to replace Councillor Helen 
Mirfin-Boukouris on the Audit Committee. 

 
 
7.  
 

SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Isobel Bowler, seconded by Councillor Clive Skelton, 
that the recommendation made by the Licensing Committee at its meeting held on 
12 September 2013 be approved. 

  
 After a Right of Reply by Councillor Isobel Bowler, the Motion was carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That approval be given to the recommendation made by the 
Licensing Committee at its meeting held on 12th September, 2013 that the 
Committee’s published scheme of delegation be amended to reflect the legislative 
changes arising from the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, as set out in the report of 

Page 21



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 18 of 46 
 

the Chief Executive now submitted. 

 
 
8.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR BRYAN LODGE 
 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Bryan Lodge, seconded by Councillor Geoff Smith, 

that this Council notes the following resolution passed by the Cabinet at its 
meeting held on 18th September, 2013, following its consideration of a report of 
the Executive Director, Resources on the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2014/15 to 2018/19 - 

  
 “RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 

  

 (a) notes the forecast position for the next 5 years; 

  

 (b) agrees the approach to business planning targets; 

  

 (c) agrees to give consideration to reviewing the Council Tax Support Scheme 
for 2014/15 with decisions based on an assessment of the impact of the 
reductions made in 2013/14 and the other welfare reforms that have/are 
being introduced; 

  

 (d) agrees that as part of the business planning process, any increases in 
specific grant are to be held corporately to assist in balancing the overall 
budget; and 

  

 (e) refers the report to Full Council for consideration.” 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Andrew Sangar, seconded by Councillor 

Colin Ross, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by:- 
  
 1. the insertion of “(a)” after the words “That this Council”; and 
  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (b) to (e) as follows:- 
  
 (b) therefore struggles to understand why the current Administration 

insists on wasting taxpayers’ money on costly pet projects; 
  
 (c) notes the comments of the Leader of the Opposition in his 

Conference speech that “We are going to have to stick to strict 
spending limits to get the deficit down”; 

  
 (d) notes research by the Institute of Fiscal Studies that the spending 

commitments and unfunded tax cuts already set by Labour 
politicians would add an estimated £201bn to the national debt; and 

  
 (e) therefore, assumes that a Labour Government would not reverse 

Page 22



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 19 of 46 
 

reductions in funding to Sheffield City Council and criticises the rank 
hypocrisy of the current Administration. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 After a Right of Reply by Councillor Bryan Lodge, the original Motion was put to 

the vote and carried, as follows:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council notes the following resolution passed by the 
Cabinet at its meeting held on 18th September, 2013, following its consideration 
of a report of the Executive Director, Resources on the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2018/19 -  

  
 “RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the forecast position for the next 5 years; 
  
 (b) agrees the approach to business planning targets; 
  
 (c) agrees to give consideration to reviewing the Council Tax Support Scheme 

for 2014/15 with decisions based on an assessment of the impact of the 
reductions made in 2013/14 and the other welfare reforms that have/are 
being introduced; 

  
 (d) agrees that as part of the business planning process, any increases in 

specific grant are to be held corporately to assist in balancing the overall 
budget; and 

  
 (e) refers the report to Full Council for consideration.” 

  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy indicated that they voted for 

paragraphs (a), (c), (d) and (e) and abstained on paragraph (b) of the resolution 
of the Cabinet and asked for this to be recorded.) 

 
 
9.  
 

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLOR ROGER DAVISON 
 

 Councillor Roger Davison referred to an incident which had occurred at the 
meeting of the Council on 4th September 2013. He now gave an apology without 
reservation to Council with regard to his conduct, and in particular to the Lord 
Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) and to Councillor George Lindars-Hammond. 
Councillor Davison said that he was sorry for any offence that Councillor 
Lindars-Hammond may have felt and added that he would not repeat the 
behaviour. 

 
 
10.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR MARY LEA 
 

 Health and Social Care Funding 
  

Page 23



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 20 of 46 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Mary Lea, seconded by Councillor Jayne Dunn, that 
this Council:- 

  
 (a) notes the article in “The Star” newspaper dated 17th September 2013 

entitled ‘Sheffield Council’s anger at £40m health funding cut’; 
 
(b) further notes that the article states ‘The NHS Sheffield Clinical 

Commissioning Group’s annual budget was set at £691m last year – but 
last week The Star reported that a proposed shake-up of the way funds 
are handed out would mean that is cut by 7.6 per cent, to just over 
£642m’;  

 
(c) wholeheartedly agrees with comments by the Council’s Chief Executive 

that “The NHS is giving more money to places like Bournemouth because 
of the pressure of having ageing populations. But this money is needed 
here, too. It’s the equivalent of the funding settlement for local 
government which has seen councils in the north and cities take larger 
cuts”; 

 
(d) is appalled, but not surprised, by the motivation of a Conservative 

Government taking money away from cities such as Sheffield to give to 
some of the healthiest, wealthiest areas of the country and believes this is 
just the latest example of the Deputy Prime Minister failing to stand up for 
Sheffield;  

 
(e) calls on the Government to immediately scrap this unfair funding 

redistribution; 
 
(f) is further concerned of increased pressures on NHS services which are 

already impacting on NHS budgets before they have been cut by the 
Government and this is being compounded by the Government’s A&E 
crisis;  

 
(g) regrets that more than 5,000 nursing jobs have been lost on this 

Government’s watch;  
 
(h) notes findings from a recent report to the Health Select Committee stating 

"Staffing levels in emergency departments are an area of considerable 
concern to the committee. They are not sufficient to meet demand, with 
only 17% of emergency departments managing to provide 16-hour 
consultant coverage during the working week”; 

 
(i) acknowledges that Government cuts to funding for social care are 

contributing to the increasing waiting lists, producing a false economy due 
to the costs of increased waiting lists, and notes the scathing headline of 
the Independent newspaper article dated 16th August, 2013 ‘NHS 
Waiting List at five year high as cost cutting reforms strike’ which outlines 
criticisms of the Government’s health policy from a leading health journal;  

 
(j) fully supports the recent comments by The Rt. Hon. Andy Burnham, MP, 

Page 24



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 21 of 46 
 

Shadow Secretary of State for Health, “There has been a massive 
increase in the numbers of people aged over 90 going into A&E by 
ambulance – up by over 100,000, an increase of 66 per cent - as £1.8 
billion is cut from council care budgets. That is why Labour has said we 
would invest £1.2 billion of the NHS underspend, which Jeremy Hunt has 
handed back to the Treasury, over the next two years to ease the crisis in 
social care, tackling a root cause of the pressure on A&E. For older 
people this could make a huge difference by enabling them to stay in their 
own homes for longer and providing the support they need to return home 
after hospital.”; and 

 
(k) fully supports policies outlined by the Shadow Secretary of State for 

Health for whole person care through integrating health and social care. 
  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Roger Davison, seconded by Councillor 

Diana Stimely, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by the deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the 
substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) supports the Government’s decision to protect NHS spending from the 

spending reductions that were caused by the previous Government’s 
record national deficit; 

  
 (b) welcomes the £26 million increase in the 2011-12 revenue allocation for 

Sheffield Primary Care Trust, the additional £27 million increase in 2012-
13 and the equivalent £16 million increase in 2013-14; 

  
 (c) praises the Government for announcing £3.8 billion in the latest spending 

review to improve adult social care and join up with health services; 
  
 (d) recalls comments by the Shadow Health Secretary, the Rt. Hon. Andy 

Burnham M.P., in June 2010 that it would be “irresponsible” to increase 
NHS spending and therefore believes that a Labour government would 
have cut Sheffield’s allocation rather than increase it; and 

  
 (e) supports the Government’s increases in funding for NHS services in 

Sheffield, as opposed to its belief that the Shadow Health Secretary 
would cut funding for the NHS in Sheffield. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 After a Right of Reply by Councillor Mary Lea, the original Motion was then put 

to the vote and carried, as follows:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) notes the article in “The Star” newspaper dated 17th September 2013 

entitled ‘Sheffield Council’s anger at £40m health funding cut’; 
  
 (b) further notes that the article states ‘The NHS Sheffield Clinical 

Page 25



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 22 of 46 
 

Commissioning Group’s annual budget was set at £691m last year – but 
last week The Star reported that a proposed shake-up of the way funds 
are handed out would mean that is cut by 7.6 per cent, to just over 
£642m’; 

  
 (c) wholeheartedly agrees with comments by the Council’s Chief Executive 

that “The NHS is giving more money to places like Bournemouth because 
of the pressure of having ageing populations. But this money is needed 
here, too. It’s the equivalent of the funding settlement for local 
government which has seen councils in the north and cities take larger 
cuts”; 

  
 (d) is appalled, but not surprised, by the motivation of a Conservative 

Government taking money away from cities such as Sheffield to give to 
some of the healthiest, wealthiest areas of the country and believes this is 
just the latest example of the Deputy Prime Minister failing to stand up for 
Sheffield; 

  
 (e) calls on the Government to immediately scrap this unfair funding 

redistribution; 
  
 (f) is further concerned of increased pressures on NHS services which are 

already impacting on NHS budgets before they have been cut by the 
Government and this is being compounded by the Government’s A&E 
crisis; 

  
 (g) regrets that more than 5,000 nursing jobs have been lost on this 

Government’s watch; 
  
 (h) notes findings from a recent report to the Health Select Committee stating 

"Staffing levels in emergency departments are an area of considerable 
concern to the committee. They are not sufficient to meet demand, with 
only 17% of emergency departments managing to provide 16-hour 
consultant coverage during the working week”; 

  
 (i) acknowledges that Government cuts to funding for social care are 

contributing to the increasing waiting lists, producing a false economy due 
to the costs of increased waiting lists, and notes the scathing headline of 
the Independent newspaper article dated 16th August, 2013 ‘NHS 
Waiting List at five year high as cost cutting reforms strike’ which outlines 
criticisms of the Government’s health policy from a leading health journal; 

  
 (j) fully supports the recent comments by The Rt. Hon. Andy Burnham, MP, 

Shadow Secretary of State for Health, “There has been a massive 
increase in the numbers of people aged over 90 going into A&E by 
ambulance – up by over 100,000, an increase of 66 per cent - as £1.8 
billion is cut from council care budgets. That is why Labour has said we 
would invest £1.2 billion of the NHS underspend, which Jeremy Hunt has 
handed back to the Treasury, over the next two years to ease the crisis in 
social care, tackling a root cause of the pressure on A&E. For older 

Page 26



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 23 of 46 
 

people this could make a huge difference by enabling them to stay in their 
own homes for longer and providing the support they need to return home 
after hospital.”; and 

  
 (k) fully supports policies outlined by the Shadow Secretary of State for 

Health for whole person care through integrating health and social care. 

  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (a) to 

(c) and (e) to (k) and abstained on paragraph (d) of the Motion and asked for this 
to be recorded.) 

 
 
11.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR DAVID BAKER 
 

 Library Service 
  
 It was moved by Councillor David Baker, seconded by Councillor Simon 

Clement-Jones, that this Council:- 
  
 (a) recalls the 10,000 signature petition presented to this Council, which 

opposed the closure of community libraries; 
  
(b) notes with dismay the Administration’s plans, which could see sixteen 

community libraries closed; 
  
(c) believes these closures could be avoided if the Administration did not 

continue to waste money on costly pet projects and notes the main 
opposition group’s budget  amendment, which presented fully-costed 
measures to protect the libraries’ budget within 2013/14; and 

  
(d) opposes the Administration’s disastrous proposals. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Robert Murphy, seconded by Councillor 

Jillian Creasy, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by:- 

  
 1. the deletion in paragraph (c) of the words “believes the closures could  be 

avoided if the Administration did not continue to waste money on costly 
pet projects and”; 

  
 2. the addition of a new paragraph (d) as follows:- 
  
 “(d)  notes also the smaller opposition group’s budget amendment 

which proposed funding libraries in 2013/14 via a 2.95% increase 
in council tax, subject to endorsement in a local Council tax 
referendum, which equates to 48p extra a week for the majority of 
households”; 

  
 3. the re-lettering of original paragraph (d) as a new paragraph (e); and 
  

Page 27



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 24 of 46 
 

 4. the addition of a new paragraph (f) as follows:- 
  
 “(f) believes that full financial transparency of the library service is 

necessary for community groups to form successful partnerships 
and that the books should be opened to the public as soon as 
possible”. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 (Note: Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Shaffaq Mohammed, Colin Ross, Joe 

Otten, Penny Baker, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, 
Cliff Woodcraft, Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders Hanson, 
Katie Condliffe and David Baker voted for Paragraph 4 and against Paragraphs 
1, 2 and 3 and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
 It was then moved by Councillor Mazher Iqbal, seconded by Councillor Karen 

McGowan, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by 
the deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the 
substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) opposes in the strongest possible terms the devastating cuts imposed on 

the Council by the Government which are impacting on libraries and 
services across the Council and notes figures from the latest Medium 
Term Financial Strategy confirms that the Council has a £78 million 
budget gap for the next two years in addition to the £182 million that has 
been saved over the past three years; 

  
 (b) regrets that due to the Deputy Prime Minister’s complete inability to offer 

any plausible defence for the decisions this Government is making to 
impose unprecedented cuts to Sheffield City Council at the same time as 
wealthier councils receive just a fraction of the cuts, the Deputy Prime 
Minister and main opposition group have resorted to publically spouting 
factually inaccurate untruths about Council spending and recalls the letter 
from the Chief Executive explaining the facts on these issues and is 
appalled at the irresponsibility of the Deputy Prime Minister and main 
opposition group; 

  
 (c) regrets that at the same time as the Government have imposed 

devastating cuts to local government, they have cut the high rate of 
income tax, wasted billions of pounds on the damaging NHS re-
organisation and are now proposing to spend money on a tax break for 
some married couples which is expected to cost around £600 million; 

  
 (d) notes that by 2015/16, the Council will have had an overall reduction in 

Government formula funding by 50% and, with the scale of the cuts the 
Council is facing, all services will face significant reductions meaning that 
the Council has no option but to do things differently; 

  
 (e) notes that under the proposals, the Council has pledged to keep 11 

libraries running with a further five as community-led libraries and the rest 

Page 28



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 25 of 46 
 

may become independent libraries, should enough interest be generated 
from people; 

  
 (f) welcomes that the present Administration are working with local 

communities to do everything to keep libraries open despite the 
reductions to the libraries budget and praises the spirit of local 
communities who have come forward with 27 registrations of interest from 
a wide variety of organisations ranging from individuals to community 
groups and businesses; 

  
 (g) recalls that whilst the previous Administration were still in control, the 

Council had commissioned work to find £1.3 million of savings from the 
libraries budget, and is therefore appalled at the cynical hypocrisy of the 
main opposition group claiming that they would not have made reductions 
to libraries; and 

  
 (h) resolves to do everything possible to support local communities to keep 

libraries open through finding alternative ways of delivering the service.   
                                     
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as follows:- 
  
 For the amendment (56) - The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Peter 

Rippon) and Councillors Julie Dore, Jack 
Scott, Roy Munn, Clive Skelton, Ian 
Saunders, Chris Rosling-Josephs, Helen 
Mirfin-Boukouris, Bryan Lodge, Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Jayne Dunn, Stuart 
Wattam, Jackie Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, Talib 
Hussain, Mohammad Maroof, Geoff Smith, 
Mary Lea, Harry Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, 
Joyce Wright, Steven Wilson, Garry 
Weatherall, Sheila Constance, Chris 
Weldon, Alan Law, Steve Jones, Tim 
Rippon, Cate McDonald, George Lindars-
Hammond, Robert Johnson, Janet Bragg, 
Pat Midgley, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, 
David Barker, Isobel Bowler, Nikki Bond, 
Qurban Hussain, John Campbell, Martin 
Lawton, Peter Price, Tony Damms, Leigh 
Bramall, Gill Furniss, Richard Crowther, 
Philip Wood, Neale Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, 
Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf Meade, Jackie 
Satur, Mick Rooney and Ray Satur. 

    
 Against the amendment (18) - Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Shaffaq 

Mohammed, Robert Murphy Jillian Creasy, 
Colin Ross, Joe Otten, Penny Baker, Diana 
Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue Alston, Andrew 

Page 29



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 26 of 46 
 

Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Denise Reaney, Ian 
Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders Hanson, 
Katie Condliffe and David Baker. 

    
 Abstained on the amendment 

(1) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley). 

  

 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 

  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
  
 (a) opposes in the strongest possible terms the devastating cuts imposed on 

the Council by the Government which are impacting on libraries and 
services across the Council and notes figures from the latest Medium 
Term Financial Strategy confirms that the Council has a £78 million 
budget gap for the next two years in addition to the £182 million that has 
been saved over the past three years; 

  
 (b) regrets that due to the Deputy Prime Minister’s complete inability to offer 

any plausible defence for the decisions this Government is making to 
impose unprecedented cuts to Sheffield City Council at the same time as 
wealthier councils receive just a fraction of the cuts, the Deputy Prime 
Minister and main opposition group have resorted to publically spouting 
factually inaccurate untruths about Council spending and recalls the letter 
from the Chief Executive explaining the facts on these issues and is 
appalled at the irresponsibility of the Deputy Prime Minister and main 
opposition group; 

  
 (c) regrets that at the same time as the Government have imposed 

devastating cuts to local government, they have cut the high rate of 
income tax, wasted billions of pounds on the damaging NHS re-
organisation and are now proposing to spend money on a tax break for 
some married couples which is expected to cost around £600 million; 

  
 (d) notes that by 2015/16, the Council will have had an overall reduction in 

Government formula funding by 50% and, with the scale of the cuts the 
Council is facing, all services will face significant reductions meaning that 
the Council has no option but to do things differently; 

  
 (e) notes that under the proposals, the Council has pledged to keep 11 

libraries running with a further five as community-led libraries and the rest 
may become independent libraries, should enough interest be generated 
from people; 

  
 (f) welcomes that the present Administration are working with local 

communities to do everything to keep libraries open despite the 
reductions to the libraries budget and praises the spirit of local 
communities who have come forward with 27 registrations of interest from 

Page 30



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 27 of 46 
 

a wide variety of organisations ranging from individuals to community 
groups and businesses; 

  
 (g) recalls that whilst the previous Administration were still in control, the 

Council had commissioned work to find £1.3 million of savings from the 
libraries budget, and is therefore appalled at the cynical hypocrisy of the 
main opposition group claiming that they would not have made reductions 
to libraries; and 

  
 (h) resolves to do everything possible to support local communities to keep 

libraries open through finding alternative ways of delivering the service.   

  
 (Note: Councillors Robert Murphy and Jillian Creasy voted for paragraphs (a) to 

(e) and (h) and abstained on paragraphs (f) and (g) of the Substantive Motion 
and asked for this to be recorded.) 

 
 
12.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR HARRY HARPHAM 
 

  “Bedroom Tax” 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Harry Harpham seconded by Councillor Tony 

Damms, that this Council:- 
  
 (a) believes that the “Bedroom Tax” is a cruel and unfair measure hitting 

vulnerable people through no fault of their own and was introduced by the 
Conservative-led government, with support of the LibDems in 
government; 

 
(b) believes that the outcomes of the Liberal Democrat’s 2013 Conference 

demonstrates their Party’s indifference to the hardship caused by the 
Bedroom Tax; 

 
(c) welcomes the effective and broad-based campaign run by local Sheffield 

campaigners and activists against this most unfair tax; 
 
(d) reiterates in the strongest possible terms this Council’s opposition to the 

Bedroom Tax and warmly welcomes the commitment made by The Rt. 
Hon. Ed Miliband, MP, Leader of the Opposition, that a future Labour 
Government will repeal this unfair tax as part of the Labour Party’s 
concrete action to support families with the cost of living crisis; 

 
(e) further believes that this commitment is affordable as it is to be paid for 

without additional borrowing by reversing the current Government’s tax 
cut for hedge funds, unfair shares for rights scheme and tackling 
disguised employment in the construction industry; and 

 
(f) however, regrets that the Government’s failure to listen means Sheffield 

families are suffering today and resolves to write to the Deputy Prime 
Minister, who is the only local MP who supports this tax, urging him to 

Page 31



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 28 of 46 
 

take action to reverse this cruel and unfair measure now. 
  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Jillian Creasy, seconded by Councillor 

Robert Murphy, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by the re-lettering of paragraphs (b) to (f) as new paragraphs (c) to (g) and the 
addition of a new paragraph (b) as follows:- 

  

 “(b) notes the smaller opposition group’s motion to Full Council in April 2013 
which called on the Administration to look into not taking eviction 
proceedings where arrears are solely due to unaffordability caused by the 
bedroom tax and is glad that the Administration has now implemented 
this idea”. 

  

 On being put to the vote the amendment was negatived. 

  

 It was then moved by Councillor Penny Baker, seconded by Councillor Ian 
Auckland, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by the 
deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the substitution 
of the following words therefor:- 

  

 (a) reiterates its opposition to the so-called ‘bedroom tax’; 

  

 (b) reaffirms that the root cause of this problem is the nation’s housing crisis 
and endorses the current Government’s action to build more affordable 
housing; 

  

 (c) contrasts this action with the lamentable record of the previous 
Government who during their thirteen years in power: 

  

 (i) saw the building of social housing decline to its lowest figure since the 
Second World War; 

  

 (ii) built seven times more prison cells than council homes; 

  

 (iii) oversaw the Housing Market Renewal Scheme, in which 4,590 
houses in South Yorkshire were demolished, while just 2,415 were 
built, at a cost of £265 million; and 

  

 (iv) left a legacy of 2 million households in England on housing waiting 
lists, 250,000 families living in over-crowded accommodation and 1 
million bedrooms standing empty; 

  

 (d) reminds Members that the under-occupancy principle was first agreed by 
the previous Government in the private sector, in which no concessions 
were made for foster children, overnight carers, or service personnel; 

  

 (e) welcomes the motion agreed at the Liberal Democrat Conference this 
month, which expressed concerns about the policy and set out practical 

Page 32



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 29 of 46 
 

steps to support those affected by the reform; 
  

 (f) supports concessions which have already been secured as a result of 
Liberal Democrat influence in Government including: 

  

 (i) exemptions for members of the armed forces and foster families; 

  

 (ii) trebling the Discretionary Housing Payment budget; and 

  

 (iii) providing councils with discretionary funding to help families in difficult 
circumstances; 

  

 (g) encourages the Government to go further, following the measures set out 
by the policy motion agreed by the Liberal Democrat Conference; 

  

 (h) highlights the work of Liberal Democrat run Stockport Council in 
supporting residents affected by the reform, specifically pledging not to 
evict anyone for arrears if those arrears are exclusively caused by this 
reform, up until the point that they have rejected two ‘reasonable offers’ of 
a smaller property; 

  

 (i) draws attention to the complete lack of action from the present 
Administration in supporting affected residents and in particular notes the 
following decisions: 

  

 (i) imposing a 23% cut in Council Tax Benefit, refusing an offer of £1.1 
million from the Government to reduce the cut; 

  

 (ii) consistent dithering over £10 million of New Homes Bonus funding, 
which should have been used earlier to help provide affordable 
housing in Sheffield; and 

  

 (iii) rejecting proposals from opposition councillors for a cross-party 
working group to support local residents affected by the ‘bedroom 
tax’; and 

  

 (j) implores the Administration to offer local residents more than crocodile 
tears and investigate what action the Council can take to support those 
who are affected. 

  

 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 

  

 The original Motion was then put to the vote and carried, as follows:- 

  

 RESOLVED: That this Council: 
  
 (a) believes that the “Bedroom Tax” is a cruel and unfair measure hitting 

Page 33



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 30 of 46 
 

vulnerable people through no fault of their own and was introduced by the 
Conservative-led government, with support of the LibDems in 
government; 

  
 (b) believes that the outcomes of the Liberal Democrat’s 2013 Conference 

demonstrates their Party’s indifference to the hardship caused by the 
Bedroom Tax; 

  
 (c) welcomes the effective and broad-based campaign run by local Sheffield 

campaigners and activists against this most unfair tax; 
  
 (d) reiterates in the strongest possible terms this Council’s opposition to the 

Bedroom Tax and warmly welcomes the commitment made by The Rt. 
Hon. Ed Miliband, MP, Leader of the Opposition, that a future Labour 
Government will repeal this unfair tax as part of the Labour Party’s 
concrete action to support families with the cost of living crisis; 

  
 (e) further believes that this commitment is affordable as it is to be paid for 

without additional borrowing by reversing the current Government’s tax 
cut for hedge funds, unfair shares for rights scheme and tackling 
disguised employment in the construction industry; and 

  
 (f) however, regrets that the Government’s failure to listen means Sheffield 

families are suffering today and resolves to write to the Deputy Prime 
Minister, who is the only local MP who supports this tax, urging him to 
take action to reverse this cruel and unfair measure now. 

 
 The votes on the above Motion were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:- 
  
 For paragraphs (a), (d) and 

(f) (58) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Peter 

Rippon) and Councillors Julie Dore, Jack 
Scott, Roy Munn, Clive Skelton, Ian 
Saunders, Chris Rosling-Josephs, Helen 
Mirfin-Boukouris, Bryan Lodge, Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Jayne Dunn, Stuart 
Wattam, Jackie Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, Talib 
Hussain, Jillian Creasy, Mohammad Maroof, 
Robert Murphy, Geoff Smith, Mary Lea, 
Harry Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, Joyce Wright, 
Steven Wilson, Garry Weatherall, Sheila 
Constance, Chris Weldon, Alan Law, Steve 
Jones, Tim Rippon, Cate McDonald, George 
Lindars-Hammond, Robert Johnson, Janet 
Bragg, Pat Midgley, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, David Barker, Isobel Bowler, Nikki 
Bond, Qurban Hussain, John Campbell, 
Martin Lawton, Peter Price, Tony Damms, 
Leigh Bramall, Gill Furniss, Richard 
Crowther, Philip Wood, Neale Gibson, Nikki 

Page 34



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 31 of 46 
 

Sharpe, Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf 
Meade, Jackie Satur, Mick Rooney and Ray 
Satur. 

    
 Against paragraphs (a), (d) 

and (f) (16) 
- Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Shaffaq 

Mohammed, Colin Ross, Joe Otten, Penny 
Baker, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue 
Alston, Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, 
Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, 
Anders Hanson, Katie Condliffe and David 
Baker. 

    
 Abstained on paragraphs (a), 

(d) and (f) (1) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley). 

    
    
 For paragraphs (b) and (e) 

(56) 
 The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Peter 

Rippon) and Councillors Julie Dore, Jack 
Scott, Roy Munn, Clive Skelton, Ian 
Saunders, Chris Rosling-Josephs, Helen 
Mirfin-Boukouris, Bryan Lodge, Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Jayne Dunn, Stuart 
Wattam, Jackie Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, Talib 
Hussain, Mohammad Maroof, Geoff Smith, 
Mary Lea, Harry Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, 
Joyce Wright, Steven Wilson, Garry 
Weatherall, Sheila Constance, Chris 
Weldon, Alan Law, Steve Jones, Tim 
Rippon, Cate McDonald, George Lindars-
Hammond, Robert Johnson, Janet Bragg, 
Pat Midgley, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, 
David Barker, Isobel Bowler, Nikki Bond, 
Qurban Hussain, John Campbell, Martin 
Lawton, Peter Price, Tony Damms, Leigh 
Bramall, Gill Furniss, Richard Crowther, 
Philip Wood, Neale Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, 
Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf Meade, Jackie 
Satur, Mick Rooney and Ray Satur. 

    
 Against Paragraphs (b) and 

(e) (16) 
 Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Shaffaq 

Mohammed, Colin Ross, Joe Otten, Penny 
Baker, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue 
Alston, Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, 
Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, 
Anders Hanson, Katie Condliffe and David 
Baker. 

    
 Abstained on paragraphs (b) 

and (e) (3)  
 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 

and Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert 
Murphy. 

Page 35



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 32 of 46 
 

    
 For paragraph (c) (74)  The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Peter 

Rippon) and Councillors Julie Dore, Jack 
Scott, Roy Munn, Simon Clement-Jones, 
Clive Skelton, Ian Saunders, Chris Rosling-
Josephs, Helen Mirfin-Boukouris, Bryan 
Lodge, Denise Fox, Karen McGowan, Jayne 
Dunn, Stuart Wattam, Shaffaq Mohammed, 
Jackie Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, Talib 
Hussain, Robert Murphy, Jillian Creasy, 
Mohammad Maroof, Geoff Smith, Mary Lea, 
Harry Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, Colin Ross, 
Joe Otten, Joyce Wright, Steve Wilson, 
Garry Weatherall, Penny Baker, Diana 
Stimely, Roger Davison, Sheila Constance, 
Chris Weldon, Alan Law, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Steve 
Jones, Tim Rippon, Cate McDonald, Denise 
Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, 
George Lindars-Hammond, Robert Johnson, 
Janet Bragg, Pat Midgley, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, David Barker, Isobel Bowler, Nikki 
Bond, Qurban Hussain, Anders Hanson, 
John Campbell, Martin Lawton Peter Price, 
Tony Damms, Leigh Bramall, Gill Furniss, 
Katie Condliffe, David Baker, Richard 
Crowther, Philip Wood, Neale Gibson, Nikki 
Sharpe, Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf 
Meade, Trevor Bagshaw, Jackie Satur, Mick 
Rooney and Ray Satur. 

    
 Against paragraph (c) (0)  Nil. 
    
 Abstained on paragraph (c) 

(1) 
 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley). 

 
 
13.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR BRYAN LODGE 
 

 City Centre Events 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Leigh Bramall, seconded by Councillor Mohammad 

Maroof, that this Council:- 
  
 (a) welcomes the Summer Saturdays’ initiative which ran throughout the 

summer and saw Sheffield city centre host a series of events and 
activities designed to bring families into the city centre to stay, play, relax 
and enjoy the shops, entertainment and food and drink;    

 
(b) further welcomes the support for the event through investment from the 

Page 36



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 33 of 46 
 

Keep Sheffield Working fund to boost the city centre and pro-actively 
support businesses in the current climate; 

 
(c) notes that the Sheffield by the Sea initiative has again proved very 

popular and was put on at no cost to the Council and thanks all partners 
who provide support enabling these events;  

 
(d) welcomes other activity in the City to support the city centre such as The 

Star newspaper’s Summer of Love drive; 
 
(e) welcomes the wider programme of events and community festivals that 

add to the vibrancy of the City; and 
 
(f) resolves to continue to support city centre retail and requests officers to 

report to Cabinet with further proposals to support the city centre 
economy. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor 

Shaffaq Mohammed, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion of paragraph (f); and 

  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (f) to (h) as follows:- 

  
 (f) is pleased to see work to build upon the previous Administration’s 

successes, including the Food Festival, Tramlines, the Peace 
Gardens ice-rink and the Sheffield Wheel; 

  
 (g) yet regrets that the current Administration’s thoughtless ‘anti-

business ‘policies, such as the absurd changes to city-centre 
parking charges, are doing more harm to local businesses than 
good; and 

  
 (h) urges the Administration to drop their anti-business rhetoric and 

produce a report on the steps the Council can take to support city-
centre businesses. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 

  
 The original Motion was the put to the vote and carried, as follows:- 

   

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 

  
 (a) welcomes the Summer Saturdays’ initiative which ran throughout the 

summer and saw Sheffield city centre host a series of events and 
activities designed to bring families into the city centre to stay, play, relax 
and enjoy the shops, entertainment and food and drink;    

  

Page 37



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 34 of 46 
 

 (b) further welcomes the support for the event through investment from the 
Keep Sheffield Working fund to boost the city centre and pro-actively 
support businesses in the current climate; 

  
 (c) notes that the Sheffield by the Sea initiative has again proved very 

popular and was put on at no cost to the Council and thanks all partners 
who provide support enabling these events; 

  
 (d) welcomes other activity in the City to support the city centre such as The 

Star newspaper’s Summer of Love drive; 
  
 (e) welcomes the wider programme of events and community festivals that 

add to the vibrancy of the City; and 
  
 (f) resolves to continue to support city centre retail and requests officers to 

report to Cabinet with further proposals to support the city centre 
economy. 

  
 (Note: Councillor Bryan Lodge, having declared a disclosable pecuniary interest 

in the above item, took no part in the discussion or voting thereon.)  
 
 
14.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR IAN AUCKLAND 
 

 The MADE Festival 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor Denise 

Reaney, that this Council:- 
  
 (a) praises the excellent MADE festival for entrepreneurs, which has brought 

an estimated £500,000 to the City; 
  
(b) notes with disappointment reports that the scope of the festival has been 

reduced in 2013; 
  
(c) regrets that the reported failure to deliver a festival of similar scale has led 

to further criticism of the Council as ‘anti-business’; 
  
(d) recalls that this latest criticism follows a string of dressing-downs by 

business groups and business leaders; 
  
(e) calls upon the Administration to drop its ‘anti-business’ rhetoric that is 

driving jobs and investment away from Sheffield; and 
  
(f) hopes that the MADE events to be held in 2013 will be a success and 

recommends that the festival returns to full strength in 2014.  
  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Leigh Bramall, seconded by Councillor 

Neale Gibson, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by 
the deletion of paragraphs (b) to (f) and the addition of new paragraphs (b) to (f) 

Page 38



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 35 of 46 
 

as follows:- 
  
 (b)  therefore wholeheartedly welcomes the new partnership agreement with 

BE Group for the next three years which will take the MADE festival to the 
next level and is excited about the future and the pivotal role MADE can 
play in developing the next generation of entrepreneurs; 

  
 (c)  notes that in November a series of high profile MADE events will take 

place during Global Entrepreneurship Week 2013, with successful 
entrepreneurs sharing their experience and knowledge with the business 
leaders of the future and a major Festival programme is already being 
lined up for autumn 2014; 

  
 (d)  is committed to doing everything possible to support small businesses 

who are central to Sheffield’s economy and therefore welcomes the 
following programmes of the present Administration to support local 
businesses:- 

  
 (i) breaking down the barriers for Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs) 

to access the Regional Growth Fund; 
  
 (ii) the RISE Graduate Scheme which supports local SMEs employ 

graduates; 
  
 (iii) the export project supporting local SMEs in the export market; 
  
 (iv) the Sheffield Apprenticeship Programme; 
  
 (v) Skills Made Easy designed by Sheffield City Council, in partnership 

with the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), to put the purchasing 
power for training for the first time, in the hands of businesses in 
the Sheffield City Region (SCR); 

  
 (vi) Business Summits; 
  
 (vii) the small business loan fund; 
  
 (viii) up to 50% reductions in off street parking charges; 
  
 (ix) the Chapel Walk scheme; 
  
 (x) the Digital Direction Programme; and 
  
 (xi) securing a Start Up Loans for Young People, the only Council to 

have done so; 
  
 (e) supports the recent policy proposal by the Rt. Hon. Ed Miliband MP to cut 

business rates which will provide much needed support to businesses 
across Sheffield and contrasts this with the Government’s damaging 
decision to delay the review of business rates which will hit many small 

Page 39



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 36 of 46 
 

businesses; and 
  
 (f) regrets that the only anti-business rhetoric in the City comes from the 

main opposition group who continue to talk Sheffield down. 
  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (b) 

and (c) and abstained on paragraphs (d), (e) and (f) of the amendment and 
asked for this to be recorded.)  

  
 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:-  
  
 (a) praises the excellent MADE festival for entrepreneurs, which has brought 

an estimated £500,000 to the City; 
  
 (b)  therefore wholeheartedly welcomes the new partnership agreement with 

BE Group for the next three years which will take the MADE festival to the 
next level and is excited about the future and the pivotal role MADE can 
play in developing the next generation of entrepreneurs; 

  
 (c)  notes that in November a series of high profile MADE events will take 

place during Global Entrepreneurship Week 2013, with successful 
entrepreneurs sharing their experience and knowledge with the business 
leaders of the future and a major Festival programme is already being 
lined up for autumn 2014; 

  
 (d)  is committed to doing everything possible to support small businesses 

who are central to Sheffield’s economy and therefore welcomes the 
following programmes of the present Administration to support local 
businesses:- 

  
 (i) breaking down the barriers for Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs) 

to access the Regional Growth Fund; 
  
 (ii) the RISE Graduate Scheme which supports local SMEs employ 

graduates; 
  
 (iii) the export project supporting local SMEs in the export market; 
  
 (iv) the Sheffield Apprenticeship Programme; 
  
 (v) Skills Made Easy designed by Sheffield City Council, in partnership 

with the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), to put the purchasing 
power for training for the first time, in the hands of businesses in 
the Sheffield City Region (SCR); 

  

Page 40



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 37 of 46 
 

 (vi) Business Summits; 
  
 (vii) the small business loan fund; 
  
 (viii) up to 50% reductions in off street parking charges; 
  
 (ix) the Chapel Walk scheme; 
  
 (x) the Digital Direction Programme; and 
  
 (xi) securing a Start Up Loans for Young People, the only Council to 

have done so; 
  

 (e) supports the recent policy proposal by the Rt. Hon. Ed Miliband MP to cut 
business rates which will provide much needed support to businesses 
across Sheffield and contrasts this with the Government’s damaging 
decision to delay the review of business rates which will hit many small 
businesses; and 

  
 (f) regrets that the only anti-business rhetoric in the City comes from the 

main opposition group who continue to talk Sheffield down. 

  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (a), 

(b) and (c) and abstained on paragraphs (d), (e) and (f) of the Substantive 
Motion and asked for this to be recorded.)  

 
 
15.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JILLIAN CREASY 
 

 Supermarket Levy Proposal 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Jillian Creasy, seconded by Councillor Robert 

Murphy, that this Council:- 
  
 (a) remembers the resolution it passed in October 2012 requesting officers to 

bring forward a report to Cabinet dealing with the benefits and resource 
implications of using the Sustainable Communities Act; 

 
(b) thanks Sheffield for Democracy for providing the Cabinet Member and 

relevant officer with details of a simple and inexpensive method  for 
consulting with local people  about possible proposals and for offering 
assistance to organise any public meetings; 

 
(c) welcomes the recent campaign  by Local Works, the national organisation 

which has promoted the adoption and use of the Sustainable 
Communities Act, to use it to call for a levy on large supermarkets; 

 
(d) notes that under the proposal, local authorities would be given the power 

to introduce a local levy of 8.5% on large retail outlets in their area with a 
ratable value of over £500,000 and that the revenue would be used to 

Page 41



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 38 of 46 
 

promote local economic activity, local services and facilities, community 
wellbeing and environmental protection; 

 
(e) notes that in Sheffield this would apply to 60 retail outlets (half of which 

are in Meadowhall) and raise in excess of £6million per year; 
 
(f) notes that similar measures have been introduced in Northern Ireland and 

Scotland without adversely affecting inward investment or the local 
economy; 

 
(g) welcomes the support for this measure by local authorities across the 

country and by the Shadow Minister for Communities and Local 
Government;  

 
(h) notes that the South and East Yorkshire branch of the Federation of Small 

Businesses also endorses the campaign; and 
 
(i) therefore urges the Cabinet Member and officers to expedite the Cabinet 

report requested in October 2012 so that the Sustainable Communities 
Act can be used to consult on the supermarket levy proposal as soon as 
possible. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Leigh Bramall, seconded by Councillor 

Mohammad Maroof, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion in paragraph (c) of the word “welcomes” and its substitution 

by the word “notes”, and the addition of the following words at the end of 
that paragraph:-  

  
 “but would also impact retailers including Debenhams, WH Smiths, 

Primark, John Lewis and Marks & Spencer and is concerned that 
to introduce such a levy would undermine important efforts to 
increase the vitality of the city centre and progress a new retail 
quarter”  

  
 2. the deletion of paragraphs (d) to (i); and 
  
 3. the addition of new paragraphs (d) to (f) as follows:- 
  
 (d) believes that a strong city centre retail offer benefits local residents 

and boosts the local economy and is concerned that the 
introduction of such a levy could damage the prospects of securing 
a retail offer for the city centre which is a key component of the City 
Centre Masterplan; 

  
 (e) is concerned that this policy would place at risk the prospects of 

bringing a high quality retail development to Sheffield and could 
also see the loss of business rate income; and 

  

Page 42



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 39 of 46 
 

 (f) therefore will not seek powers from the Government for a levy on 
large retail outlets and resolves to continue to assist small business 
development in the City through alternative means and to progress 
alternative ways of securing funding to support city centre vibrancy 
such as a Business Improvement District. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 It was then moved by Councillor David Baker, seconded by Councillor Diana 

Stimely, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by:- 
  
 1. the deletion of paragraphs (c) to (i); and 
  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (c) and (d) as follows:- 
  
 (c) therefore, regrets that in the past twelve months no progress has 

been made in delivering new submissions through the Act; and 
  
 (d) believes than any new submissions should be based upon the 

ideas of Sheffielders, as was the case the last time the Act was 
used, when Sheffield was highlighted as an example of best 
practice. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  
 

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 

  
 (a) remembers the resolution it passed in October 2012 requesting officers to 

bring forward a report to Cabinet dealing with the benefits and resource 
implications of using the Sustainable Communities Act; 

  
 (b) thanks Sheffield for Democracy for providing the Cabinet Member and 

relevant officer with details of a simple and inexpensive method for 
consulting with local people about possible proposals and for offering 
assistance to organise any public meetings; 

  
 (c) notes the recent campaign by Local Works, the national organisation 

which has promoted the adoption and use of the Sustainable 
Communities Act, to use it to call for a levy on large supermarkets, but 
would also impact retailers including Debenhams, WH Smiths, Primark, 
John Lewis and Marks & Spencer and is concerned that to introduce such 
a levy would undermine important efforts to increase the vitality of the city 
centre and progress a new retail quarter; 

  
 (d) believes that a strong city centre retail offer benefits local residents and 

boosts the local economy and is concerned that the introduction of such a 

Page 43



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 40 of 46 
 

levy could damage the prospects of securing a retail offer for the city 
centre which is a key component of the City Centre Masterplan; 

  
 (e) is concerned that this policy would place at risk the prospects of bringing 

a high quality retail development to Sheffield and could also see the loss 
of business rate income; and 

  
 (f) therefore will not seek powers from the Government for a levy on large 

retail outlets and resolves to continue to assist small business 
development in the City through alternative means and to progress 
alternative ways of securing funding to support city centre vibrancy such 
as a Business Improvement District. 

  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (a) 

and (b), against paragraphs (d) (e) and (f) and abstained on paragraph (c) of the 
Substantive Motion and asked for this to be recorded.) 

 
 
16.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ALISON BRELSFORD 
 

 Don Valley Stadium 
  
 It was moved by Councillor Joe Otten, seconded by Councillor Colin Ross, that 

this Council:- 
  
 (a) recalls the regrettable decision to close Don Valley Stadium; 

  
(b) reminds Members that the plan to delay closure, proposed by the main 

opposition group, would have actually saved the Council money in the 
2013/14 financial year; 

  
(c) recalls the pledge of the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and Leisure 

that alternative facilities would be improved to required standards by the 
time Don Valley closed; 

  
(d) yet notes with concern the disparaging comments by members of the 

Sheffield athletics community regarding Woodbourn Road; 
  
(e) furthermore, highlights the difficulty of the Sheffield Eagles to find a new 

home in the City and expresses dismay that the team may be forced out 
of Sheffield; 

  
(f) welcomes the campaign to take community control of the Stadium and 

urges the Administration to provide assistance to community 
campaigners; and 

  
(g) requests the Cabinet Member to present an urgent plan to enable the 

demolition of the Stadium to be delayed until all outstanding issues are 
addressed.  

  

Page 44



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 41 of 46 
 

 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, seconded by 
Councillor Cliff Woodcraft, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion of paragraphs (f) to (g); and 
  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (f) to (j) as follows:- 
  
 (f) notes the online comments of Lewis Samuel: 
  
 “@SaveDonValley offered to run the Stadium at no cost to the 

council tax payer. So what's the real agenda behind the closure?”; 
  
 (g) further notes the comments of Rob Creasey in The Sheffield Star 

newspaper: 
  
 “We went to the Town Hall for a meeting and were told to go away 

U It was a cynical, political decision from a Council who have 
mismanaged the Stadium to the point where they want it 
destroyed”; 

  
 (h) believes that additional time secured by 4SLC was crucial in the 

preparation of a community bid and the successful transfer of 
Stocksbridge Leisure Centre; 

  
 (i) believes the Administration’s approach to Don Valley Stadium has 

been an insult to campaigners and that this may now leave the 
Council open to another judicial review; and 

  
 (j) requests that the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and Leisure 

immediately re-considers her decision and presents an urgent plan 
to enable the demolition of Don Valley Stadium to be delayed. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraph 2(h) 

and abstained on paragraphs 1 and 2 (sub-paragraphs (f), (g), (i), and (j)) of the 
amendment and asked for this to be recorded.)  

  
 It was then moved by Councillor Isobel Bowler, seconded by Councillor Mary 

Lea, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by the 
deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the substitution 
of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) opposes in the strongest possible terms the devastating cuts imposed on 

the Council by the Government which are impacting on services across 
the Council and notes figures from the latest Medium Term Financial 
Strategy which confirm that the Council has a £78 million budget gap for 
the next two years in addition to the £182 million that has been saved 
over the past three years; 

Page 45



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 42 of 46 
 

  
 (b) notes that by 2015/16, the Council will have had an overall reduction in 

Government formula funding by 50% and, with the scale of the cuts the 
council is facing, all services will face significant reductions meaning that 
the Council has no option but to do things differently; 

  
 (c)  regrets that one of the consequences of these unfair cuts to Sheffield is 

the closure of Don Valley Stadium, however, acknowledges that 
Woodbourn Road Athletics Stadium will be open from 6th October, 
meaning that Sheffield will continue to have a purpose built track and field 
facility; 

  
 (d) welcomes the partnership working between local athletics clubs, Sheffield 

Hallam University and the Council in developing the Woodbourn Road 
facility; 

  
 (e) therefore notes The Friends of Don Valley Stadium group’s application 

was assessed against the legislation as set out by the Government, and 
did not meet the criteria to warrant Don Valley Stadium being registered 
as an asset of community value; and 

  
 (f) notes the comments by the Director of Culture and Leisure: 
  
 “But what we would like to say is this does not mean we are not wanting 

to look at other ways we can work with this group and other interested 
parties and we have offered to meet the group again to talk about what is 
next for the Stadium  UU.  We really appreciate what the Friends were 
trying to achieve  UU..  If anyone can show they can take on the 
Stadium and have the cash to do it, clearly we will work with them  UU.  
The Council now has no budget to keep it open, no money to mothball it 
and no offer of money from anyone else.” 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (a) 

and (b) and abstained on paragraphs (c) to (f) of the amendment and asked for 
this to be recorded.) 

  
 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
  
 (a) opposes in the strongest possible terms the devastating cuts imposed on 

the Council by the Government which are impacting on services across 
the Council and notes figures from the latest Medium Term Financial 
Strategy which confirm that the Council has a £78 million budget gap for 
the next two years in addition to the £182 million that has been saved 
over the past three years; 

  

Page 46



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 43 of 46 
 

 (b) notes that by 2015/16, the Council will have had an overall reduction in 
Government formula funding by 50% and, with the scale of the cuts the 
Council is facing, all services will face significant reductions meaning that 
the Council has no option but to do things differently; 

  
 (c)  regrets that one of the consequences of these unfair cuts to Sheffield is 

the closure of Don Valley Stadium, however, acknowledges that 
Woodbourn Road Athletics Stadium will be open from 6th October, 
meaning that Sheffield will continue to have a purpose built track and field 
facility; 

  
 (d) welcomes the partnership working between local athletics clubs, Sheffield 

Hallam University and the Council in developing the Woodbourn Road 
facility; 

  
 (e) therefore notes The Friends of Don Valley Stadium group’s application 

was assessed against the legislation as set out by the Government, and 
did not meet the criteria to warrant Don Valley Stadium being registered 
as an asset of community value; and 

  
 (f) notes the comments by the Director of Culture and Leisure: 
  

 “But what we would like to say is this does not mean we are not wanting 
to look at other ways we can work with this group and other interested 
parties and we have offered to meet the group again to talk about what is 
next for the Stadium ...  We really appreciate what the Friends were trying 
to achieve ...  If anyone can show they can take on the Stadium and have 
the cash to do it, clearly we will work with them ...  The Council now has 
no budget to keep it open, no money to mothball it and no offer of money 
from anyone else.” 

  
 (Note: Councillors Jillian Creasy and Robert Murphy voted for paragraphs (a) 

and (b) and abstained on paragraphs (c) to (f) of the Substantive Motion and 
asked for this to be recorded.) 

 
 
17.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR PENNY BAKER 
 

 Park Hill Redevelopment  
  
 It was moved by Councillor Penny Baker, seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that 

this Council:- 
 
(a) recalls the pledge of previous Labour Administrations that the cost to 

Council-tax payers of the Park Hill refurbishment would not extend 
beyond paying the wages of Council staff working on the project; 

  
(b) notes with dismay the decisions of the current Administration to agree 

more than £2.8 million of Council spend at Park Hill; 
  

Page 47



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 44 of 46 
 

(c) notes with concern statements from the developer that they are 
“discussing funding” with the Council on future development of the site; 

  
(d) furthermore, highlights comments in a Cabinet paper agreed in August 

2013 that stated: “There is a risk to delivering the full scope of major 
schemes such as Park Hill U This could result in schemes ‘stalling’, 
leading to increased costs”; 

  
(e) believes these comments are of particular concern given the current 

Administration’s decision to allow wide-reaching agreements to be 
signed-off behind closed doors; and 

  
(f) recommends that no further funding is agreed for this political vanity 

project at a time when every penny counts and funds need to be directed 
to vital front-line services. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Harry Harpham, seconded by Councillor 

Pat Midgley, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by 
the deletion of all the words after the words ‘That this Council’ and the 
substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) regrets that for the past eight years the main opposition group have 

consistently denigrated the Park Hill Development, even though in over 
eight years of criticising Park Hill, they have never proposed a workable 
alternative to the redevelopment project; 

  
 (b) furthermore regrets that the main opposition group are continuing to imply 

that the Council has allocated £2.4m of Council resources for the Park Hill 
redevelopment when in fact this is not the case; 

  
 (c) notes that not a penny of the £2.4m is to be spent on the refurbishment of 

the Park Hill flats; 
  
 (d) for the avoidance of doubt, re-iterates that: 
  
 (i)  there are additional costs relating to the Park Hill site which until 

this Government came to power were paid for by a Government 
grant; 

  
 (ii) these costs include looking after the empty flat blocks, providing 

security where the blocks are still lived in, funding Police 
Community Support Officer patrols and rehousing local residents; 
and 

  
 (iii) the Coalition Government has now completely ended the Housing 

Market Renewal Grant that previously paid for these costs and the 
Council has been left to pick up the £2.4m bill; 

  
 (e) further believes that there is no question about whether or not these costs 

should be funded and firmly believes that it is the right thing to do to 

Page 48



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 45 of 46 
 

ensure that the local residents are safe; 
  
 (f) also notes that it is the Council’s statutory duty to provide home loss 

payments to residents who are moving home; 
  
 (g) believes that the main opposition group know that it would not be 

reasonable to ask Urban Splash to foot the bill for this, as ultimately this is 
the Council’s responsibility, and at no point during the life of the project 
has it ever been expected that Urban Splash should pay for these costs; 

  
 (h) regrets that the Coalition Government has ended the Housing Market 

Renewal Grant, leaving local taxpayers to pick up the bill for costs that 
were previously funded by the Government; and 

  
 (i) believes that instead of ‘playing politics’, the main opposition group should 

be standing up for Sheffield and condemning the Government for ending 
Housing Market Renewal funding. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, was put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
  
 (a) regrets that for the past eight years the main opposition group have 

consistently denigrated the Park Hill Development, even though in over 
eight years of criticising Park Hill, they have never proposed a workable 
alternative to the redevelopment project; 

  
 (b) furthermore regrets that the main opposition group are continuing to imply 

that the Council has allocated £2.4m of Council resources for the Park Hill 
redevelopment when in fact this is not the case; 

  
 (c) notes that not a penny of the £2.4m is to be spent on the refurbishment of 

the Park Hill flats; 
  
 (d) for the avoidance of doubt, re-iterates that: 
  

 (i)  there are additional costs relating to the Park Hill site which until 
this Government came to power were paid for by a Government 
grant; 

  
 (ii) these costs include looking after the empty flat blocks, providing 

security where the blocks are still lived in, funding Police 
Community Support Officer patrols and rehousing local residents; 
and 

  
 (iii) the Coalition Government has now completely ended the Housing 

Market Renewal Grant that previously paid for these costs and the 

Page 49



Council 2.10.2013 

Page 46 of 46 
 

Council has been left to pick up the £2.4m bill; 
  
 (e) further believes that there is no question about whether or not these costs 

should be funded and firmly believes that it is the right thing to do to 
ensure that the local residents are safe; 

  
 (f) also notes that it is the Council’s statutory duty to provide home loss 

payments to residents who are moving home; 
  
 (g) believes that the main opposition group know that it would not be 

reasonable to ask Urban Splash to foot the bill for this, as ultimately this is 
the Council’s responsibility, and at no point during the life of the project 
has it ever been expected that Urban Splash should pay for these costs; 

  
 (h) regrets that the Coalition Government has ended the Housing Market 

Renewal Grant, leaving local taxpayers to pick up the bill for costs that 
were previously funded by the Government; and 

  
 (i) believes that instead of ‘playing politics’, the main opposition group should 

be standing up for Sheffield and condemning the Government for ending 
Housing Market Renewal funding. 

 
 
 

Page 50



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Public Health 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    6th November 2013  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Director of Public Health Report for Sheffield 2013  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Jeremy Wight 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
Directors of Public Health have a statutory duty to produce an annual report on 
the health of the local population. This is the first annual report since the transfer 
of public health from the NHS to the Council in April 2013. In this year’s report we 
provide an overview of what the Public Health Outcomes Framework is telling us 
about health in Sheffield and where we need to improve on that. We then 
describe some of the opportunities we now have to address these public health 
problems. We also make a number of recommendations for taking up these 
opportunities.  
______________________________________________________________ 

 

Recommendations: 
 
To note the information contained in the report. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
Background Papers: 
 
The full report can be accessed from www.sheffield.gov.uk/publichealthreport  A 
summary version is also available to download from this website. All councillors 
have been sent a printed copy of the summary report. In addition, the ‘Sheffield 
Health and Well Being’ profiles for each of the 28 electoral wards have been 
updated. These may be accessed via the DPH report website. 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Full Council 

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

YES 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

All 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 
 

Cllr Mary Lea 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 
 

Health 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

YES 
 

Page 52



REPORT TITLE: New Opportunities – Sheffield Director of Public Health 
Report 2013 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 
 

Directors of Public Health have a statutory duty to produce an annual 
report on the health of the local population. This is the first annual report 
since the transfer of public health from the NHS to the Council in April 
2013. In this year’s report we provide an overview of what the Public 
Health Outcomes Framework is telling us about health in Sheffield and 
where we need to improve on that. We then describe some of the new 
opportunities we now have to address some of these public health 
problems. We also make a number of recommendations for taking up 
these opportunities.  

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 
 

The health of the people of Sheffield is better than it ever has been.  
Death rates from the major diseases continue to fall steadily.  Life 
expectancy for men and women has improved again. It is also 
particularly good to see that the latest analysis of inequality in life 
expectancy across the City shows a narrowing of the gap for women.  
 

2.2 Health inequalities remain a real concern however, particularly when 
issues such as how long people can expect to live free of disability or ill 
health which can limit daily life (rather than simply how long people can 
expect to live in either good or bad health) are taken into account. There 
are also a number of public health outcomes where further improvement 
can and should be made, especially in relation to vulnerable and at risk 
groups of people. 

  
3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 
 

The report makes eleven key recommendations for taking up a number 
of opportunities for improving health and reducing health inequalities in 
Sheffield. Overall the aim is to capitalise on the opportunity we now have 
to combine public health resources with the wider reach of the Council 
and thus achieve a shift in focus towards prevention, a shift that is 
essential if services are to be sustainable. 

  
4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 

Including Legal, Financial and all other relevant implications (if any) 
  
4.1 
 

The full report may be accessed from 
www.sheffield.gov.uk/publichealthsheffield   A summary version is also 
available to download from this website. All councillors have been sent a 
printed copy of the summary report. 
 

4.2 The ‘Sheffield Health and Well Being’ profiles for each of the 28 electoral 

Page 53



wards have also been updated. These may be accessed via the DPH 
report website alongside a range of other health and wellbeing ward and 
neighbourhood based information. 
 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 
 

Not applicable 

6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 
 

It is good practice for Director of Public Health reports to contain 
recommendations aimed at improving the health of the population.  This 
year’s report makes eleven such recommendations based on an analysis 
of the new opportunities that now exist as a result of the transfer of public 
health leadership to the Council, for addressing public health problems in 
the City. 

  
7.0 REASONS FOR EXEMPTION (if a Closed report) 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
  
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH’S 

REPORT 
8.1 The Council should: 

 
Use proposals developed as part of the Fulfilling Lives: A Better Start bid 
to inform focussed investment in the early years and evidence based 
prevention and early intervention. 
 

8.2 Ensure the Children and Young People’s Joint Commissioning Group 
leads the redesign and commissioning of a universal prevention and 
early intervention emotional wellbeing and mental health service for 
children and young people, to commence April 2014. 
 

8.3 Continue to develop a comprehensive sexual health system for the City 
including targeted action to increase chlamydia screening and access to 
early HIV testing, and to reduce teenage conceptions. There should be 
appropriate input from all Portfolios to this work. 
 

8.4 Systematically prioritise initiatives to encourage Sheffield people to ‘Move 
More’, making being physically active the norm by building physical 
activity into their daily life. 
 

8.5 Fully support a citywide programme to reduce the availability and supply 
of illicit tobacco, which will include targeted enforcement action by 
Trading Standards. 
 

8.6 Use the Care Homes Well Being Needs Assessment, currently in 
preparation, to inform commissioning priorities for people who live in care 
homes and take further steps to address isolation and loneliness by 

Page 54



working with the NHS to build on the community support worker model 
and the Lowedges, Batemore and Jordanthorpe pilot. 
 

8.7 Seek to enhance the resilience and social capital of the most deprived 
communities in Sheffield by:  

• using the skills and experience of Healthy Communities staff in the 
new locality model 

• increasing the capacity of lay workers and volunteers, by working 
in collaboration with the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector 

• enhancing the ability of mainstream services to promote 
community resilience through developing their public health skills. 

 
8.8 Through the implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy work 

programme, Building mental wellbeing and emotional resilience, invest in 
public mental health, and instigate a renewed approach to improving 
mental wellbeing in the City, building on the actions identified in the draft 
Mental Wellbeing Strategy for Sheffield. 
 

8.9 Use its outreach to raise awareness of, and promote, schemes such as 
the Fixed Penalty Notice Waiver, and ensure that all parts of the 
organisation that have an influence on alcohol consumption and related 
harm, collaborate to address this issue. 
 

8.10 Take joint action with health and employment organisations to increase 
employment opportunities by removing health barriers, especially for 
those affected by mental health conditions and where appropriate, for the 
same group, seek to develop employment as a way out of poor health. 
 

8.11 Contribute towards improved uptake of the NHS Health Check through: 

• encouraging employees to take up their NHS Health Check when 
they are invited (and to encourage their family members to do 
likewise) 

• using contracting mechanisms to ensure council contractors are 
encouraged to support their employees to take up their NHS 
Health Check invite 

• using existing outreach into disadvantaged communities to 
encourage the uptake of health checks and so reduce rather than 
widen health inequalities in the City. 

 
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
9.1 The Council is recommended to note the information contained in this 

report. 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes Of Previous Council Meeting
	7 Director of Public Health Report for Sheffield 2013

